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Editor’s Note: The opinion of the United
States Court of Appeals, Third Circuit in
United States y, Kowalchuk published in
the advance sheet at this citation, 744
F.2d 301-827, was withdrawn from the
bound volume because rehearing en bane
was granted and opinion vacated,
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thirty days had already been imposed on
her. Unlike the petitioner in United States
ex rel. Dessus v. Commonwealth of Penn-
sylvania, 452 F.2d 557 (3d Cir.1971) cert.
denied, 409 U.S. 853, 93 S.Ct. 184, 34
L.Ed.2d 96 (1972), on which the magistrate
relied, Pringle’s sentence was not suspend-
ed (in fact, as late as April 1983, the Court
of Common Pleas indicated its intent to
impose at least a three days jail sentence
on Pringle), so that for her, the threat of
impending incarceration was clearly
present.

Once established, habeas corpus jurisdic-
tion cannot be defeated by the commuta-
tion or vacation of the petitioner’s sentence

., unless the prior conviction carries with it
conse- .
See Carafas v. La Vallee, 391

no substantial collateral legal
quences.
U.S. at 238-39, 88 S.Ct. at 1559-60. The

magistrate and the district court, however,

" reasoned that the possibility existed in. .

Pringle’s case that if she had not with-
drawn her appeal of her sentence, but had
been successful in it, a non-custodial sen-
tence could have been imposed. Thus, fol-
lowing this rationale, a federal court could
not entertain the petition. While it has
been held that the imposition of a non-cus-
todial sentence will defeat federal jurisdie-
tion, see Wright v. Bailey, 544 F.2d 737
(4th Cir.1976), cert. denied, 434 U.S. 825,
98 S.Ct. 72, 54 L.Ed.2d 82 (1977), the cir-
cumstances requiring this result are not
present here. In Wright v. Bailey, the sole
penalty provided in the statute under which
the petitioner was convicted was a cash
fine. No provision for incarceration, even
for non-payment of the fine, was contem-

plated. Accordingly, the court found that -
- the petltloner in question was not “in custo- .

" for the purpose of Izabeas corpus re-
v1ew . BT

In contrast, the Pennsylvama Dlsorderly
Conduct Statute challenged by Pringle
clearly provides for the penalty of impris-
onment for up to a year, 18 Pa.Cons.Stat.
§ 5503(b); 18 Pa.Cons.Stat. § 106 (1973),

" and thus Pringle remains under a judgment

of imprisonment. The trial court’s conclu-
sion that a non-custodial sentence might be
imposed is mere speculation and is not sup-

j,mxssmg Prmgle S pentlon
“court’s judgment of dismissal will be there-
fore reversed, and the cause remanded for

ported by the fact that both the original
and the subsequent sentences received by
petitioner involved jail terms of anywhere
from three to thirty days. In any event,
the possibility of a future non-custodial
sentence is jrrelevant in view of the fact
that Pringle was indeed in custody at the
time her habeas corpus petition was filed.
This was the critical point in time for the
purpose of establishing federal jurisdiction.

v

In conclusion, we find that because Prin-
gle has met the custodial requirement of

section 2254 and has adequately exhausted

her state remedies :with respect to the

.claims presented in her habeas corpus peti-

:txon the dxstrxct courf was. in error in dis-

consideration of the merits of the constitu-

“tional claims.
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UNITED STATES of America
4 v o
KOWALCHUK, Serge, a/k/a
~ Kowalczuk, Serhij.
Appeal of Serge KOWALCHUK.
" No. 83-1571.
United States Court of Appeals,
T Thlrd Circuit.
Argued Apnl 23 1984.
:Decided Sept. 11, 1984.

" Government filed suit seeking to re-
voke the citizenship of a naturalized citizen
on ground that naturalization was procured
by concealment of material fact or willful
misrepresentation. The United States Dis-

The district




. occupation ‘of Ukraine town;

trict Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, John P. Fullam, J.,, 571
F.Supp. 72, granted the petition and re-
voked citizenship, Appeal was taken. The
Court of Appeals, Aldisert, Chief Judge,
held that: (1) the Government failed to
establish that the naturalized citizen volun-
tarily assisted enemy forces during Nazi
(2) the
Government failed to establish that natu-
ralized citizen’s responsibilities with the lo-
cal militia assisted the enemy in persecut-
ing civil populations; and (3) the Govern-
ment failed to establish that the natural-

‘ized citizen’s false statemeénts'in his ﬁsa

application about his residence and occupa-
_ tion during ‘the war were misrepresenta-
“‘tions of “material facts” sufflcxent to’ have
demed him avisa. . ki
" Reversed and remanded

tosenn, Circuit Judge dlssented Wlth

opinion.

1. Federal Courts ¢848
For purposes of applying appropriate
standards of review, ‘“basic facts” are
those primary or historical facts either elic-
ited from direct evidence or based on recit-
al of external events in question and which
depend on. credibility of their narrator.
See ‘publication Words and Phrases
for other judicial constructions and
defmmons. o - .
2 Federal Courts =843

For purposes of appropriate siandards ‘

" of review, “inferred facts” are factual con-
clusions either based on circumstantial evi-
dence. or drawn from basic facts, but no
legal precepts are Jmphcated in dramng
permissible factual inferences.

See publication Words and" Phrases

for other judicial constructnons and }

de'flmtxons. . -

3. Federal Courts 848 -

For purposes of appropnate standards

of review, “ultimate fact” is determination
made by ‘trial court upon whlch hablhty

- t;ums. -

See publxcauon Words and Phrases’
for other judicial constructions and
definitions.
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-missibly inferred therefrom are found by

, 5. Federal Courts <'3=>754 850

“to plenary review for legal error. ..

"naturahzatlon cases may be reversed if, as’
,to legal component there was error made

4. Federal Courts ¢=850
Where either basic facts or facts pe

trial eourt sitting as fact finder, nelther‘
may be disturbed on review unless they are’
deemed clearly erroneous.

- Factual components of “ultimate facf
are Subject to review under clearly erron
ous rule, but legal components are subJec

P
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B

o
&
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6. Aliens &71(20)
Ultimate fmdlngs of trial courts in de;

in 1dent1f1catxon or application of legal pré-‘rl

cepts, 6r if factual components are deemed
clearly erroneous when evidence in suppo

thereof is viewed in light most favorable’ to
defendant. Immigration and Natlonahty
Act, § 340(a), 8 US.C.A. § 1451(a).

7. Aliens &=71(18)

Narrative facts upon which legal con-
clusion that naturalized citizen “voluntarily ®
assisted the enemy forces” while working "
as clerk for local militia during Nazi ocet
pation of Ukraine town were supported by,
sufficient evidence in record so that the
were hot clearly erroneous. Immlg’ratxon
and Nationality Act, § 340(a), 8 US.C
§ 1451(a); FedRules Civ.Proc.Rule 52(a)
28 U.S. C A S

8. Aliens’ &=T71(6) )

"To allow -for denaturalization -
ground that naturalized citizen assisted g
emy dunng Nazi occupatlon of Ukra _»g'

CA § 1451(a)
9 Aliens @71(18)

den of proving by clear and convmcmgé
evidence that naturalized citizen's member=;
ship in local militia during Nazi occupation.
of Ukraine town was voluntary so as .150
support denaturahzatxon. Immigration and
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; Nationality Act, § 340(a), 8 U.S.C.A. application, investigation would have un-
cts tSdDir‘ % § 1451(a). . ' covered facts that would have resulted in
m a. sund by : 10. Aliens €71(18) denial of visa and, therefore, naturalized

t finder, neither e , . .
) 4 , L . - tizen’s false statements about his -

. 3 In denaturalization -action, district ¢ rest

v unless _fhey are X dence and occupation during Nazi occupa-

court’s factual findings with respect to nat- ., . . L
: uralized citizen’s responsibilities with local 0O it Ukraine town did not justify revoca-
850 & militia during Nazi occupation-of Ukraine SO0 of grant of citizenship. Immigration
f “ultimate fact” 4 ‘town were not clearly erroneous.. Immi- and Nationality Act, § 340(a), 8 US C.A.
r clearly errone- gration and Nationality Act, § 340(a), 8 § 1451@).
US.C.A. § 1451(a); Fed.Rules Civ.Proc.

Rule 52(a), 28 U.S.C.A. John Rogers Carroll (argued), Carroll-&

11. Aliens €71(18) Carroll, Philade}phia, Pa., for appellant; Al-
ial courts in de- In denaturalization action, Govemment lison Pease, Philadelphia, Pa., on the brief.
e reversed if, as failed to establish that naturalized citizen’s - Neal M. Sher, Director, Michael Wolf,
was error made ‘4 responsibilities with local militia during ~Deputy Director, Jeffrey N. Mausner (ar-
fon of legal pre- Nazi occupation of Ukraine town were of gued), Kathleen N. Coleman, U.S. Dept. of
ents are deemed TE4 sufficient responsibility to support conclu- Justice, Washmgbon, D € “for appellee.

fence in support 18 sion that naturalized citizen “assisted the

st favorable fo B enemy in persecuting civil populations” Before ALDISERT Chxef Judge and
and Nationality » which would justify revocation of grant of WEIS and ROSENN Cir, cuit Judges
1451(a). - citizenship. Immigration and Nationality

Act, § 340(a), 8 US.C.A. § 1451(a). e -OPINION OF THE COURT
12. Aliens €=71(7, 18) AITDISERT, Chlg.f Judge. .
To justify denaturalization based on This appeal requires us to decide wheth-

false statements by naturalized citizen in = €r 2ppellant _Sergela Kowalchuk was proper-
visa application, government must prove, 1y denaturalized in the proceeding below.

vhich legal con-
zen “voluntarily
* while working 7%
irin i occu- T

re « ‘ted by g by clear and convincing evidence, that, had In .makmg this determinaf:ion we must ex-
rd so that they undisclosed facts been known, investigation ~2mIne, under' th? a}}propnate standards of
5. Immigration would have been conducted and disqualify- Teview, certain findings of fact and conclu-
)a), 8 US.C.A. ing facts would have been discovered. Im- Sions of law made by the district court.

migration and Nationality Act, § 340(3)’ Because we conclude that the government
>roc.Rule 52(a), B¢ Ugré A. § 1451(a). ty failed to prove its charges against appel-

lant by the requisite degree of certainty,
13. Aliens &=71(18) we re»?erse. E gre oy

Where it was not clear that naturahzed o . -
citizen’s membership in local militia during o L :
Nazi occupation in Ukraine town ‘would
have precluded issuance of visa, Govern- -
ment failed to establish that citizenship
could be revoked for false statements
about membership on theory that facts -
were suppressed which, if known, would
have warranted denial of citizenship. Im-
migration and Nationality Act, § 340(a), 8 the 'Lubomyl police (also known as the

et its high bur- US.CA.§ 1451(a). o schutzmannschaft or militia) and did food
and convinding, 14. Aliens &71(18) .~ distribution work. As a police clerk he
zen's membfer-_ : Government failed to prove by requi- occasionally wore a uniform, was aware of
Vazi occupation . site clear and convincing evidence that, had the restrictions placed on Lubomyl Jewish
ntary so as to naturalized citizen divulged his actual war- residents, and prepared duty rosters for
nmigration and time residence and occupation on his visa the other militia men which included as-

wuralization on’
zen assisted en-’
on of Ukraine
ired to meet its’
uralized citizen
smy. Immigra-
i 340(a), 8 US.

" _Appellant was born in Kremianec in the
Ukraine in 1920, and later moved to Lubo-
myl, also in the Ukraine. Shortly after the
invasion of Russia in 1941, the Nazis over-
“ran Lubomyl and took control of the local
govemment. During the period of Nazi
occupation, appellant worked as a clerk for
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signing them to patrol the Lubomyl Jewish
ghetto.  As in other areas under Nazi occu-
pation, the Jews in Lubomy! were persecut-
ed, abused, degraded and eventually killed.
During the time in which the Jewish popu-
lation in Lubomyl was exterminated, how-
ever, appellant was receiving special train-
ing at a school away from the town at
German expense. Further, there was no
evidence that appellant performed any mili-
tia patrol duties himself or that he was
otherwise engaged dlrectly in persecutmg
_the Jewish people T ;

The dissent, in its rendition of the facts
attempts to paint a much harsher picture
both of the Lubomyl militia in general and
appellant’s wartime activities in partlcular
We recognize that it is always dxffxcult to
reconstruct what actually happened at any
point in history, and more difficult still

_when the events of consequence occurred
during wartime, in enemy terrltory, over
forty years ago. - The task is further com-
plicated here because, as noted by the dis-
trict court, “unlike virtually every other
reported denaturalization case, there is in
this case not one scrap of documentary
evidence relating to the pertinent events.”
United States v. Kowalchuk, 571 F.Supp.
72, 75 (E.D.Pa.1983). In such cases an
appellate court should adhere closely to the
* district court’s properly found facts based
on that court’s determinations of witness
credxblhty SR I

We note also that no party here has
raised any objection to the credibility deter- -
minations made below. In light of this, we,

find it both logically incredible and juris-
prudentially dxsturbmg that the dissent
dwells on proffered ‘testimony which it

claims “described the defendant’s direct

participation in the murders and brutalities
agafnst the Lubomyl Jews,” dissent  at
317, when it later acknowledges that this
precise testlmony was found credible “only
to the extent that [it] described general
conditions in Lubomyl .:.,” id., and not for
1. The dissent alleges that, as the Russian army

approached Lubomyl, appellant and his family

“voluntarily left with the German military

forces.” Dissent at 318 n. 6 (emphasis added).
The dissent offers no support for such a positive

* grant of a visa.

what it said specifically about appellant.

What must be remembered is that our con-
cern here is with evidence found credible

by the fact finder below, not with testimo-

ny offered. Our concern here is with ap-

pellant’s conduct, not the general condi-

tions in war-torn Lubomyl, as hom"ble as

they no doubt were.

" The dissent also describes at length the’
auxiliary role in Nazi atrocities played by
“indigenous forces.” Id. at 316. The
dissent implies that the Lubomyl mili-
tia was exactly such an “indigenous fores.”

" While it is undisputed that the Nazis inflict-
ed tyrannical hor:ors on many local popula- T
txoris and ‘that some “indigenous forces”
alded in"the commission of these atrocities,
what is of concern here is neither Nazf
‘atrocities per se nor the"general use of
mdlgenous forces.” What is of concern
here is the Lubomyl militia, appellant’s role
therein, -and the effect of that role on his
As stated by the district
court below, : -
Although the Nam regime was charac-
terized by meticulous record-keeping, not
one scrap of documentary evidence has
éver surfaced which reflects or even re-
. fers to the happenings at Lubomyl, the
existence of a Lubomyl schutzmanns-
chaft, the -extent to which indigenoﬁg

- forces were used by the Germans in that

area, etc. Both the Soviet Union and the 3
western allies compiled extensive lists of
persons suspected of war crimes; the
“defendant’s name has never appeared on
. 'any such list. The Ukrainian militia was
"never listed as a suspect organization.

Kowalchuk 571 F.Supp. at 77.

“ In 1944, appellant moved to the West,
fleeing the advancing Russian armies, an

eventually entered a displaced persons’
camp in Austria. Because of his famx]y’s :
ardent and generally well known anti-Com-
munist feelings, he did not wish to return
to Lubomyl, then under Soviet control.! T

“finding.”

The district court found this evi-
&
“dence equwocal at bcst staung :
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determine whether he could be classified as
either a refugee or displaced person by the
International Relief Organization of the
United Nations (IRO), he filed a form
CM/1. On this form appellant stated that
during the war he lived in Kremianec, not

Lubomyl, and that he worked as a tailor,

not for the Lubomyl militia. He later ex-
plained that he lied on his CM/1 form be-
cause he was fearful for his family. He
did not know. where they were and he knew
the Soviet Mission would have access to the
information on the form. Moreover, he did
not wish to be returned to the Soviet Un-

ion. Appellant’s misrepresentations as to

his residence and employment during the
war, set forth on the CM/1 form, were
transcn'bed or appended onto his United

States visa apphcatxon On the basis of the .

facts aﬂeged in_this apphcat]on appellant

_ was granted a visa in 1949. He emigrated

to the United States and was awarded Unit-
ed States citizenship in 1960.

IL.

Based on Russian-source newspaper arti-
cles that surfaced after appellant was
awarded citizenship, the Department of
Justice became aware of appellant’s visa
application misrepresentations and brought
The district

govemments arguments, revoked Kowal-
chuk’s citizenship on three “grounds: (1)
thatasa member of the Lubomyl militia he
vo]untanly assisted the enemy; (2) that as

a member of the Lubomyl militia he assist-,
ed the Nazis in persecuting civilian popula- i

tions; and (3) that he made a wﬂlful mate-
rial- misrepresentation of “fact by lying
about his wartime resxdence and employ-
ment. - - R

The dissent goes much further than the
district court. It argues that appellant

“made five material misrepresentations: his

_employment in the Lubomyl militia, his
Wartlme resuience in Lubomyl, his special

1eave Lubomyl w1th the retreating Germans.
_ It must be admitted, however, that this argu-

= ‘ment is considerably weakened by the fact

that the defendant’s parents, at least, had val-
id reasons for leaving at that time, and it

. same misrepresentation.

. patxon

schooling at German expense, his volunltary
_departure from Lubomyl with the German
forces and his membership in the Lubomyl
militia. Typescript dissent at 9. Because
the dissent fails to explain the difference
between membership and employment in
the Lubomyl militia, and because we see no
difference of significance, we will proceed
as though these were substantively the
As noted above,
of these asserted misrepresentations, the

district court expressly addressed on]y\
_those concerning appellant’s “residence in

Lubomy! and his employment by the town
govemment there during the German occu-
Kowalckuk 571 FSupp at 81

It is not surpnsmg that the dlstnct court

.did not dlscuss appellant’s special schoo]mg
-or his departure from Lubomyl with the
- German army as material misrepresenta-
_“tions. _First, the court did not find that
- appellant’s leaving Lubomyl with the Ger-

man army constituted voluntary departure
with them. See supra, at 304 n. 1. The
government does not assert that this lack
of a finding was erroneous. Second, as to
the special schooling issue, the government
argued at trial, not that appellant’s failure
to disclose it was a material misrepresenta-
tion, but that it was “a complete fabrica-
tion,” designed to provide appellant with an
alibi for the time when the Nazis liquidated
the Lubomyl ghetto. Kowalchuk, 571
F.Supp. at.76. - Only ‘the dissent, not the

~government, "asserts either of these two

alleged misrepresentations as a basis for
affirming the district court’s order of de-
naturalization. Therefore, because the fac-

tual predicate for one was not found by the
. fact finder, because the other runs counter

to the government’s case in chief at trial,
and because the government has not as-

“'serted either as an alternative rationale for -

affirming the district court we choose not

to address elther here. -

would be quite understandablc that the family
‘would wish to remain together. Moreover,
flight from the advancing Russian army was a
widely prevalent mode of behavior.
Kowalchuk,” 571 F.Supp. at 76.
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In,_his appeal, Kowalchuk raises two ar-
guments: (1) that the legal conclusions as
to assistance to the enemy, assistance in

persecuting civilians, and materiality are in

“error; and (2) that his due process rights
were violated because he was unable to
interview favorable witnesses under Soviet
control. Because we determine that the
legal conclusions of the district court are in
error, we will not meet appel]ant’s due
" process arguments T .-

In the present case, the government sued
"to have appellant denaturalized under 8
US.C. § 1451(a) This statute provides.

- that a grant of citizenship may be revoked .’

if it was “illegally procured or ... procured’
by concealment of a material fact ..%
For a grant of cxtlzenshlp to be legally
‘procured the applicant must have been’ in
" the country for at least five years after
being lawfully admitted pursuant to a valid
visa. 8 US.C. §§ 1181(a) and 1427(a)(1).
Appellant entered the United States under
a visa issued pursuant to the Displaced
Persons Act of 1948 (DPA), Pub.L. No. 774,
62 Stat. 1009 (1948), which was enacted by
Congress to ease the then existing quota
structure and allow for increased immigra-
tion of World War II displaced persons into
the United States. . The DPA included in its
deflmtlon of persons eligible for entry visas
those persons classified as refugees or dis-
~placed persons by the IRO. The IRO

_ guidelines excluded from ehglbllxty any__
- 747 (quoting United States v. Gmsberg, :

person who either “assited the enemy in
persecuting civil populations .. .* o r “vol-
untarily assisted the enemy forces ... in
their operat:(ons against the United Na-
tions.” Finally, the PPA _provided that
anyone who miade a willful ‘misrepresenta-
tion for the purpose of securing a visa
would not be admissible. Therefore, if a

.. person either was not eligible for _refugee

or displaced person status under the IRO
or made a material misrepresentation on
his visa application, he could be denatural-
ized under § 1451(a). See Fedorenko v.
United States, 449 U.S. 490, 101 S.Ct. 737
66 L.Ed.2d 686 (1981)

‘L.Ed. 1066 (1912)

- vocation.

IV.

Denaturalization proceedings operate %
with two competing interests at stake. ‘On g
the one hand, a certificate of cxtxzenshxp ;

“an instrument granting political privileg?
es, and open like other public grants mﬁ‘ :
revoked if and when it shall be found 6’ :

And as the Supr’e_
Court has recognized, there must be strict
compliance with all the congressionaily ‘ime
posed prereqmsxtes to the acquisition”‘of &
cxtxzenshxp SRR L
" Failyre. to _comply with any of these ¢o
- ditioris rénders the certificate of citize
hip™ lllegal]y procured,” and naturaliza-
tlon that is unlawfully procured can’ be’
set aSIde “As we. explamed in one
these pnor "decisions: - . ;
> An alien who seeks political nghts as
a member of this Nation can rxghtfully‘;g‘.~
obtain them only upon terms and con-"Z327
TR SRS

ditions specxfled by Congress - 5

“No alien has the s lightest right to 3
‘naturalization unless all statutory re-
quirements are complied with; and e
ery certificate of citizenship must -be
treated as granted upon condition that
the government may challenge it .
and demand its cancellation unless i

. ments.”

Fea'orenko 449 U.S. at 506, 101 SCt -at

243 U.S. 472, 474-75, 37 S.Ct. 422, 425, 61
L.Ed. 853 (1917) (other citations OmlttEdL.

'On the other hand, however, citizenship ¥
is a precious right and, once granted
should be protected against erroneous re- i
Thus, in denaturalization pro-
ceedings, Supreme Court teachings make

_ clear that the government bears a heav1 L.

burden of proof than in other civil proceed-
ings. Schneiderman v. United States, 320
U.S. 118, 125, 63 S.Ct. 1333 1336, 87 LEd :
1796 (1943). Further, to set aside a gran %
of cxtxzenshlp, the government’s ewdence
must be “clear, unequivocal, and convin¢
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v ing” and not leave “the issue in doubt.” see also Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. 335,
proceeaings operaté 3 Fedorenkc'),. 449 U.S. at 505, 101 S.Ct. at 341-42, 100 S.Ct. 1708, 1714-15, 64 L.Ed.2d
\terests at stake. -On 74647 (citing cases); = see also United 333 (1980).

icate of citizenship is T States v. Riela, 337 F‘?d 986, 988 (3d Cir. [2] Inferreéd facts are factual conclu-
ing political privileg- 196,4 )- “{Xny less'exactm'g standard would sions either based on circumstantial evi-
r public grants to be b,e mcon.sxst.ent with th_e Importance of the dence or drawn from basic facts. The

it shall be found to 3 right that is at stake ...." Fedorenko, “are permitted only when,"and to'the ex)i
or fraudulently pro- . 449 US. at 505-06, 101 S.Ct. at 746-47. tent that, logic and human experience indi-
t v. United States, 7% . We must keep these interests in mind as  cate 2 probability that certain conse-
} 8.Ct. 613, 615, 56 BF we proceed to evaluate appellant’s conten- quences can and do follow from the basic
nd, as the Supreme tions. Yet, before so proceeding, it is nec- facts”” Universal Minerals, 669 F.2d at
there must be strict %8 essary that we make reference to the vari- 102, As with basic facts, however, no legal
) congressiona]]y im- ous standards of review where, as in the pre;:epts are implicated in drawing the per-

] thg acquisition of & case before us, the validity of both findings - “rnissible factual inferences. ‘See e.g., Ed-

. . : : of fact and conclusxons of law are ques- ‘ward J. Sweeney & Sons, Inc. v. Texaco,

th any of these con- Z¥ tioned. s . R Inc., 637 F.2d . 105,.116" (3d Cir. 1980), cert.

ertificate of citizen- %} o St s e~ dended, ;451 717,8.911, 101 S.Ct. 1981, 68
ed,” and naturaliza-- : S . - L.Ed.2d300 (1981). Inferred facts are at

lly procured can be

r ¢ ] Consistent with Supreme Court doctrine, txmes descnbed as circumstantial facts.?
lxplamedv in one of ¥

this court has previously parsed the ele- - - [3] “Both basic and inferréd facts “must
ments of the fact/law dichotomy and sum-_- be distinguished from a concept described
marized the appropriate standards of re- iy a’term of art as an ‘ultimate fact’”
view. We have said that “it is necessary to ' rniversal Minerals, 669 F.2d at 102. An
segregate three distinct concepts which are  yltimate fact is a determination made by a
often implicated in the review of judicial {ra] court upon which liability turns. It
findings. These concepts—basic facts, in-  may either be “a conclusion of law or at

s pohtxcal nghts as

pon terms and con-
Congress )

2 s . right to ferred facts, and ultimate facts—are funda-  Jeast a determination of a mixed question
'S ah _.atutory re- . mental to the anatomy of fact finding in  of law and fact.” Helvering v. Tex-Penn
plied with; and ev- . the judicial process.” Universal Minerals, ;] ‘Co., 300 U.S. 481, 491, 57 S.Ct. 569,
itizenship must -be Inc. v. C.A. Hughes & Co., 669 F.2d 98,102 574 81 L.Ed. 755 (1937); see also Pull-
1pon condition that ' (3d Cir.1981). All three concepts are in- “pmgn-Standard v. ‘Swint, 456 U.S. at 286 n.
y challenge it ... -8 volved in this appeal. . . . 16, 102 S.Ct. at 178889 n. 16 (1982).
cellation unless is ] RO T ' ; .

with such require- - AL : IR - B.

{11 Basic facts are those primary or - [4,5] The importance of distinguishing
historical facts either elicited from ‘direct .among the three facets of fact finding is
evidence or based on a recital of the exter- - ‘reflected in the various standards of judi-
nal events in question and which depend on cial review. Where either basic facts or
the credibility of theu- _narrator. ~See facts permissibly inferred therefrom are

506, 101 S.Ct. at
ates v. Ginsberg, *
S.Ct. 422, 425, 61_3
citations . omitted)

wever, citizenship 383 . Brown v. Allen, 344 U.S; 443, 506,13 S.Ct. found by the trial court sitting as a fact
d, once granted, ' 397, 445, 97 -L.Ed. 469 (1953) (opimon of finder, neither may be disturbed on review
nst erroneous re- Frankfurter, J.). These facts do not re- unless they are deemed clearly erroneous.
aturalization pro- ‘% quire the application of a legal standard to  United States v. United States Gypsum
teachings make it 43 the historical fact determinations. ~Town- - Co., 333 U.S. 364, 394, 68 S.Ct. 525, 541, 92
t bears a heavier g send v. Sain, 372 U.S. 293, 309 n. 6, 83 _L.Ed. 746 (1948); Universal Minerals, 669
‘her civil proceed- 484 S.Ct. 745, 755 n. 6,9 L.Ed.2d 770 (1963); F.2d at 102; Rule 52@), FRCiv.P? A .
mited States, 320 i _ o T ' '

:3‘ 1336, 87 L.Ed. ° 2. What we describe as basic and iflf_erred facts Baumgarmer v. United States, 322 US. 665, 671,

{ .y - have also been described as “subsidiary facts.” 64 S. Ct 1240, 1243, 88 L.Ed. 1525 (1944).
set aside a grant g See Pullman-Standard v. Swint, 456 U.S. 273,

; T3 As we have stated in Krasnov v. Dinan, 465
mment’s ewdence : 287, 102 S.Ct. !781, 1789,’72 L.Ed.2d 66 (1982); F.2d 1298, 1302 (3d Cir.1972): .
cal, and convine- b : :



/

‘L.Ed.2d 686 (1964), i
. sion that an appellate court * ‘may accept all

“of the purely factual findings of the Dis-

trict Court and nevertheless hold as a mat-
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review of “ultimate facts” on the other
hand “is [typically] a mixed determination
of law and fact that requires the applica-
tion of legal principles to the historical
facts of [a] case.” Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446
U.S. 335, 342, 100 S.Ct. 1708, 1715 64
L.Ed.2d 333 (1980). The factual compo-
nents of the “ultimate fact” are subject to
review under the clearly erroneous rule.
Pullman-Standard v. Swint, 456 US. at
286-87 n. 16, 102 S.Ct. at 1788-89 n. 16;
Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. at 342, 100
5.Ct. at 1714~15; Neil v. Biggers, 409 U.S.
188, 193 n. 3, 93 S.Ct. 375, 379 n. 3, 34
L.Ed.2d 401 (1972).
nents are subject to plenary -review for :
legal error. Pullman Standard A Smnt
456 U.S. at 286 n. 16, 102 S.Ct, at 1788

16; Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. at 342,
100 S.Ct. at 1714-15. As.the _Supremie
Court has recently stated, aIthough the- -
clearly erroneous test of Rule- 52(3), FR.
Civ.P., “applies to findings of 'fact includ-
ing those described as ‘ultimate facts’ .

[it] does not inhibit an appellate court’s
power to correct errors of law, including
those that may infect a so-called mixed
question of law and fact .<..” Bose Corp.
v. Consumers Union of the United States,

Inc., — US. —— ——, 104 S5.Ct. 1949,"

1959-60, 80 L.Ed.2d 502 (1984). Of particu-
lar importance to the case at hand, albeit
premised on an’ analysis of the constitution-
al issues pertaining to New York Times v.
Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254, 84 S.Ct. 710, 11
the Court’s conclu-

ter of law that the record does not contain
clear and convincing ewdence ...7 of the
alleged misconduct. Bose, —_ US at
——, 104 S.Ct. at 1967. =

“In reviewing the decision of the District
Court, our responsibility is not to substitute
findings we could have made had we been the
fact-finding tribunal; our sole function is to
_review the record to determine whether the
findings of the District Court were clearly
erroneous, i.c., whether we are left with a
definite and firm conviction that a mistake

T“has been committed.'” Speyer, Inc. v. Hum-
ble Oil and Refining Co., 403 F.2d 766, 770 (3d

But its Iegal compo— :

[6] Therefore, we may reverse ultimate
findings of trial courts in denaturalization
cases if, as to the legal component, there
was error made in the identification or ap-
plication of legal precepts, or if the factual
components are deemed clearly erroneous
when the evidence in support thereof is
viewed in the light most favorable to the
‘defendant.  Schneiderman v. United
States, 320 US. at 122, 63 S.Ct. at 1335;
United States v. Anastasio, 226 F.2d 912,
917 (3d Cir.1955). With these precepts in
“mind, we turn our attention to reviewing
t.he fi ndmgs and conclusmns reached beIow

‘We' consxde.r first the dlstnct court’s de-
termmatlon that. appe]]ant “voluntarily as-
. sisted the enemy forces - This is an ulti-
ate finding, ‘and is a mixed question of
“law and fact. The legal component, that
part of the mix subject to our plenary
review, is the question of whether the
government met its burden at trial of prov-
ing a violation of the statute by clear,
unequivocal, and convincing evidence so as
not to leave the issue in doubt.

[7,8] We conclude that the narrative e

facts, upon which the legal conclusion -
rests, are supported by sufficient evidence
in the record so that they are not clearly
erroneous. Krasnov v. Dinan, 465. F.2d
1298, 1302-03 (3d Cir.1972). It is essential-
ly undlsputed that appellant did work for
_the Lubomy! militia and that this organiza-
‘tion Was a component of the Nazi-sanc-
tioned local government. Further, it is a _
permissible inference to conclude that the °
militia provided at least some level of as-
sistance to the enemy. But, to prove a
violation of the statute and allow for denat-
uralization, the government had to meet its
“. Cir.1968). It is the responsibility of an appel-

" late court to accept the ultimate factual deter-
mination of the fact-finder unless that deter-
‘mination either (1) is completely devoid of

N minimum evidentiary support displaying
some hue of credibility, or (2) béars no ration-
al relationship to the supportive evidentiary
data. Unless the reviewing court establishes

- the existence of either of these factors, it may
not alter the fact found by the trial court.
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burden of proving that appellant voluntar-
tly assisted the enemy.

" The government argues that because ap-
pellant was not forced to work for the
militia, his membership therein was, ipso
Jacto, voluntary. It rests its case on the
testimony of a Mr. Thomas, a United Na-
tions official in charge of immigration eligi-
bility matters during the period in question.
Mr. Thomas’s recollection was that such
voluntary membership would have been
sufficient evidence of assistance to the ene-
my to bar issuance of a visa. Appellant,

. however, argues that the term “voluntary”
~means more than mere membership and

requires an element of intent-to-aid and
purposefulness-of-assistance, neither of
which was proven by the government. .In
support of- this, appellant ¢ites the IRO

-Manual in force at the time which, contra-

dicting Thomas’s recollections, indicated
that voluntariness requires proof of intent

or purpose. Brief for appellant at 24, Ap-

pellant also relies on language of the Su-
preme Court in Fedorenko, 449 U.S. at 512,
101 S.Ct. at 750, to support the proposition
that ““voluntariness” means more than sim-
ply membership in the militia or mxmma]
assxstance to the enemy.

[9] As ‘we have stated, in a denaturah-
zation case, “the facts and the law should
be construed as far as is reasonably possi-
United States
v. Anastasio, 226 F.2d at 917 ‘(footnotes
omitted).

raise a substantial question whether mem-
bershxp alone, even if unforced would have
been sufficient to constitute voluntary a3

government’s case on voluntary assistance
was inconclusive and not ¢beyond doubt.”
Therefore, we conclude, as to the legal
component of this ultimate finding, the
governiment has not met its high burden of
proof by clear and convincing evidence.

-The dissent forcefully disagrees. It ar-
gues that membership in the Ukrainian mi-
litia would have either led to a presumption

of voluntary assistance or constituted

Viewing the evidence in thls_
light, we believe _appellant’s arguments un- -
-dercut the Thomas testimony and at least *
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grounds for per se ineligibility for a visa.
Dissent at 319. We consider these to ac-
cord with the same rigid definition of “vol-
untary assistance” ‘advanced by the
government at trial. They ignore the
facts, found by the court below, that: (1)
notwithstanding massive amounts of Nazi
record-keeping “not one scrap of documen-
tary evidence has ever surfaced which re-
flects or even refers to the happenings at
Lubomyl [or] the existence of the Lubomyl
schutzmannschaft . ..)” Kowalchuk, 571
F.Supp. at 77; (2) “the defendant’s name

. never appeared on any ;.. list” of

suspected, war criminals, complled by the .

allies followmg the war, za' - 3)“[ilt is not

at all clear that; in 1949 membersfup inor -

employment by the schutzmannschaft at

“Lubomyl would have ‘precluded the "is-

sdance of a visa,” id. at 82; and (4) the
govemment was iinable to cite fo a single
instance, prior to the 1950 amendments to
the DPA, where a visa apphcant was reject-
ed solely because of his association with
the Ukrainian militia, ¢d. Therefore, even
though the dissent’s assertions are based
on credible evidence, that is not enough.
The law requires the government to prove

. its denaturalization case by clear, unequiv-

ocal, and convincing evidence so as not to
leave the issue in doubt. When all the

evidence is considered here, a cloud of

doubt continues to hang over the govern-
ment’s case.

v
We now examine the district court’s con-

_ clusion that appellant “assisted the enemy
_.v,._fm persecutmg civil populations.”
sistance to the enemy. At a minimum, the™

This is
an ultimate finding and we are required to
observe the same analysis here as we did in

- reviewing the question of voluntary assist-

ance to the enemy. As with voluntary
assistance, we believe that the question of

‘whether the basic facts prove the requisite

assistance in persecuting civilian popula-
tions is one that implicates a legal compo-
nent. And here again, the legal precept is
whether the government met its high bur-
den of proof.

L s ¥ Mg fhararizmy-
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A. .
[10] Appellant argues that he per-

and that he, personally, was not actively
involved in any actual persecutions. Here
it is important to emphasize the findings of
the district court on basic and inferred
facts. Specifically, the court found that

bution of food and other supplies to per-
sons entitled to receive the same by virtue
of their employment as part of the local
government ...."  Kowalchuk, 571
F.Supp. at 80. It also found that “defend-
ant did occupy a position of some responsi-
bility with the schutzmannschaft. He had
his own office there ..
issued duty rosters; he typed the daily
reports of police activity, etc. He probably
wore a police uniform of some kind, during

ed “that the evidence is plamly insufficient
to constitute clear and convincing proof of
defendant’s involvement in the massacre
[of Lubomyls Jewish population].” Id.
These factual findings are not clearly erro-
neous. See Krasnov v. Dinan, 465 F.2d
1298, 1302 (3d Cir.1972).

We find it significant that there were no

- findings that appellant made any substan-

tive decisions in either his food distribution

or clerical positions. ~ Although he did dis-

tribute food, he did hot decide to whom

such distribution would be made. Al

though he typed the duty rosters, which

included assigning patrols within the Jew-

© . ish ghetto, he did not decide who should go

on these patrols, when they should occur,

or even that they--should occur at altt

Therefore, although his posxtlonm the local

militia was “of some respon51b111ty” the

responsibility was simply that of a clerk”

_government does not dispute this but rath-

- - er responds that this alone is sufficient to

4. As noted by counsel for appellant during a
colloquy with the bench at oral argument:

THE COURT: [The district court] did not
find then that [defendant] assigned patrols?
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formed only clerical duties for the militia

“defendant was responsible for the distri-

* sécution “of “civiliahs,
known at the time, would have precluded ,

at least some of his duty hours at the police _
station.” Id. at 81. Finally, the court not-

and not that of a decisionmaker. The

prove, by the requlsxte degree of certainty,
that appellant was involved in persecuting
the civilian population.

No reported case has yet held this level
of involvement to be sufficient assistance
in persecution of civilian populations to con-
stitute grounds for denaturalization. The
leading Supreme Court case is Fedorenko
v. United States, 449 U.S. 490, 101 S.Ct.
737, 66 L.Ed.2d 686 (1981). There, the
Court found that a person could be denatu-

_ralized where he failed to disclose on his

visa application that he had been an armed

~guard at a Nazi concentration camp. The - .3

Court concluded, ds a_matter of law, that

- being an .drmeq ¢oncentration camp guard,
; he typed up and

consntuﬁéd sufﬁcxent assistance in the per-
that, .had it been

the issuance of a visa.. By’ way of compari-

“son, the Court speculated that “an individu-
al who did o more than cut the hair of
-female [Jewish] inmates before they were

executed [by the Nazis]” would not have
been found to have assisted in the persecu-
tion of civilians. 449 U.S. at 512 n. 34, 101
S.Ct. at 750 n. 34. In United States v.

.Dercacz, 530 F.Supp. 1348 (E.D.N.Y.1982),

sufficient evidence of assistance in persecu-
tion was found where the defendant was a
uniformed Ukrainian militiaman who actu-
ally went on patrols and rounded up local
Jews who violated restrictions. Finally, in

‘United States v. Osidach, 513 F.Supp. 51
'(E.D.Pa.1981),

denaturalization was or-
‘dered upon proof that defendant was in the
local ‘militia, working as both a patrol offi-
cer _and a clerk/interpreter. —

Osidach, at present, represents the low-

est level of activity that a federal court has

found sufficient to constitute assistance in
the persecution of civilian populations. We
do not believe that appellant’s conduct
herein is of the same character as that in
Osidach. On the other hand, it is not as
blameless as the mdmdual referred to in

— MR. CARROLL: Qune the contrary, sir.
The evidence was that Mr. Kowalchuk typed
the rosters prepared by someone else.  ~

Transcript of oral argument at 42 (emphasis

~added). This was not controverted by the
government.
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Fedorenko, “who did no more than cut ...
hair....” That this case falls in between
makes our task all the more difficult.

B.
The horrors of tyranny inflicted upon

_civil populations in territories controlled by

occupying Nazi forces during World War II
are so notorious that no ‘citation is neces-
sary. News accounts, official histories,
and thousands of articles, dramas, novels,

-motion pictures, and television documenta-

ries bear witness to this universal tragedy.
Although the holocaust suffered by six mil-
lion Jews is the apogee of Nazi degeneracy,
the Nazis did not limit their ruthless mur-
ders, tortures, and terror to members of
one particular religious faith. It is a mat-
ter of record that 20 million Soviet citi-
zens—<ivilian and military——perished by
the sword of the Third Reich. "To a lesser
numerical extent, Polish, French, Belgian,
Danish and Italian civilians were slaugh-
tered by random firing squads as punish-
ment for violating rules of occupying ar-
mies.

The atrocities carried out by the Nazis
against the general populations of occupied
countries is further evidenced in a contem-
poraneous Czechoslovakian account:

The German terror ... expressed itself
immediately. . From the first day [of

" occupation] mass arrests began ‘among

~all classes of Czech society.... ‘And so

‘in the course of not quite t:wo months

some 12,000 Czechs found themselves in
prison, to remain there for short or long""

- terms; there were among them politi-

" cians, journalists, teachers and profes-

- sors.... The persecution was, however,
directed with special emphasis against
the supporters of [the pre-occupation
government], against judges, Social
Democratic politicians and members of

" factory committees, and finally against -

officers of the_ former Czechoslovak

army.... - ’ ’
Czechoslovak Ministry of Foreign Affairs,
Two Years of German Oppression in
Czechoslovakia 48 (Unwin Brothers Ltd,,
Great Britain 1941).
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To facilitate their abilities to persecute
local populations, the Nazis took special
interest in the local police departments.
The Nazis would, of course, oversee all

police activities, maintaining more direct

involvement in selected police functions,

“‘especially in the sphere of the secret state

police and the criminal police ... while
internal - security and public order

fwould be left] in principal to be maintained
by the ... [local] police....” Id. at 32-33.

-As Nazi occupation continued, their-control

over the subject areas tightened and the

-suffering of local populations grew. 'Addi-

tional pressures were applied through the

-local police and, if, the pohce tesisted: Nazi

directives, pressure was a.pphed du-ectly on
them. “The ‘Czech expemence “is, again, in-
structxve "There, “[t]he’ German ferocity -

cruelly affected the leading officials of

‘the Czech police..” As they would not lend

themselves to the persecution of their fel-
low-citizenis and would not help in the bar-
barous treatment of the prisoners, they
were themselves arrested and treated with
incredible cruelty.” Id. at 50.

The situation was even worse in the
Ukraine than in other occupied areas.
Nazi occupation there was particularly ex-
ploitive because the Ukraine figured in a
long-term, large-scale German colonization
scheme. I Kamenetsky, Hitler’s Occupa-
tion of Ukraine (1941-1944) 35-38 (Mar-
quette University Press, Wisconsin 1956).
While this colonization plan, or Lebensr-

“aum, was pursued throughout Eastern Eu-

rope’it was applied with particular zeal in
the Ukraine where the Nazis

regarded all slavs as racially inferior, in
- ‘fact Ssubhuman, and intended to achieve
German’ objectives not by sophisticated
tactics, but by sheer brute force. ...
During the period of German occupation,
Ukraine thus became a wretched labora-
" tory .. .—{with such experiments as] the
mass extermination. of the Jews, [and]
the deportation and brutalization of
Ukrainians—and the German coloniza-
‘tion with its inherent feature of enslave-
.ment of the inhabitants and the exploita- .
" tion of the country’s resources. Ukraine
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country..
Dmytro Doroshenko, A Survey of Ukram-
ian History 745 (Humeniuk Pubhcatlon
Foundation, Winnipeg 1975). " Once the
Nazis achieved control in the Ukraine they
“launched a dual policy of annihilation of
the politically and ethnically undesirable
elements and the enslavement of the re-
mainder.” Id. at 748. As a result of their
merciless techniques in pursuit of their
- goals of domination, “hundreds of thou-
sands of Jews and Ukrainians ... were
_ coldly and systematically butchered by the
Nazis because they did not fit into Hitler's
‘new order.”” Jd. .- .

c.. T

sure, and with the alternatives of arrest,
torture, imprisonment, and death stanng

them in the face, it is hardly surprising . appellant’s false statements about his resi-

that ‘many inhabitants of occupied’, coun-
tries were passively accommodating to the
Nazis. Many of these undoubtedly were
government workers and civil servants who
continued in or assumed government posi-
- tions under Nazi occupation. - Under these
circumstances, if this large number of Eu-
ropeans performed government or other
service under Nazi occupation, no reason-’
able person would conclude that each of
them “assisted in the persecution of civil
populations” -and would, thereby, be forev-
er denied even the possibility of American
-citizenship. Can we say that the baker

. who delivered bread to the Lubomyl militia

was guilty of assisting in- Nazi persecu-
tions? Or the bar maid who served beer in

" the militia headquarters mess hall? Or the
char woman or jamitor who cleaned ‘the

office where Kowalchuk’ toxlea‘ as a clerk"
Or the office machine service man who
repaired the clerk’s typewriter?

very difficult, if not ultimately arbitrary,
.act, we are required to do so in this case

- whether we affirm or reverse the dlstnct

court. -

We have decxded that we should not ex-
tend the Fedorenko-Dercacz-Osidach line
of cases to the facts presently before us.
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- suffered probably more than any other

A line "
must be drawn. Although to do so is a -~

That the present case would require us to
redraw this line at all, that this case falls
outside the ambit of previous decisions, is
itself persuasive evidence that the proof
- offered by the government below, that ap-
pellant was guilty of assisting in the perse-
cution of civilian populations, was not clear,
unequivocal, and convincing and was not so
. substantial as to ‘“not leave ‘the issue in
doubt.’” Fedorenko, 449 U.S. at 505, 101
S.Ct. at 747. Further, consistent with Su-
preme Court doctrine, we are required by
our own decision in Anastasio to resolve
. all doubts in favor of the citizen. Meas-
“ured against this-standard, we conclude

- -, that the govemmegt did not meet its high
burden O'Lprbof on thls lssue elther

[11] Under this type of relentless :j)';eéi' -

- —

L owtovin 5
Thls bnngs us to the questlon of whether

_dence and occupation during the war were
mlsrepresentatlons of “material facts” suf-
ficient to have denied him a visa under the

DPA. Although the Supreme Court has

determined what constitutes misrepresen-

“tations of material facts in a naturaliza-
tion proceeding, it has reserved the ques-
tion as to what should be the formulation
in vise application cases: “[Wle find it un-
necessary to resolve the question of wheth-
er Chaunt’s [Chaunt v. United States, 364
JUS. 350, 81 S.Ct. 147, 5 L.Ed.2d 120
(1960)] materiality test also governs false
statements in visa apphcatlons Fedoren-
ko, 449 US. at 509 101 S.Ct. at 749. In
naturahzatlon proceedmgs the Court has
stated that, to prove misrepresentation or
concealment of a material fact, the Govern-
ment must prove by clear and convincing
evidence: -

. either (1) that facts were suppressed
which, if known, would have warranted
denial of citizenship or (2) that their dis-

. closure might have been useful in an
investigation possibly leading to the dis-
covery of other facts warranting denial
of citizenship.

Chaunt v. United States 364 US. 350,
355, 81 S. Ct. 147,151, 5 L.Ed.2d 120 (1960).
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The first prong. deals with cases where
denial of citizenship could have been prem-
ised on the undisclosed information itself.
The second prong deals with cases where
the undisclosed information would not, in

- and of itself, justify denial of citizenship

but where, had it been known, other facts
could have been discovered justifying a de—
mal of cltlzenslup :

[12] What has divided the courts of ap-
peals in visa application cases is not the
applicability of Ckaunt, but rather the im-
port of the second prong of Chaunt’s de-
naturalxzatlon test. Some courts have held
that, in visa cases, the govemment need
only prove that, had the mlsrepresentatxon‘
not been made, an investigation would have
been conducted which might have uncov-
ered facts warranting denial of a visa.
Kassab v. Immigration & Naturalization
Service, 364 F.2d 806 (6th Cir.1966); Lan-
ghammer v. Hamilton, 295 F.2d 642 (Ist
Cir.1961). Other courts, including this one,
require more. We require the government
to prove not only that, had the correct
information been available, an investigation
would have been undertaken but that it
would have uncovered facts warranting
visa denial. See United States v. Riela,
337 F.2d 986, 989 (3d Cir.1964); see also La

Madrid-Peraza v. Immigration & Natu-

ralization Service, 492 F.2d 1297 (9th Cir.

1974); United States v. Rossi, 299 F.2d 650

(9th Cir.1962). We believe that the most
well-reasoned explication of this position is
in United States. v. Sheshtawy, 714 F.2d
1038 (10th Cir.1983). That opinion relied
on the analysis of Chaunt pfovided by

Justlce Blackmun’s concurrencein Fedor-
enko. There, Justice Blackmun reasoned‘rr

that to accept a might standard would un-
reasonably dilute the protections estab-

-lished by prior case law. -Fedorenko, 449

U.S. at 523, 101 S.Ct. 755 (Blackmun, -J.,
concurring). He concluded that, to succeed
in a denaturalization proceeding, under ei-

. ther prong of Chaunt, the government

must prove “the actual existence of dis-
qualifying facts—facts that themselves
.would have ‘warranted denial of petition-
er's citizenship...I” [Id. (emphasis added).

~
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The dissent takes issue with us over the
proper interpretation of the second prong
of the Chaunt test and accuses us of mis-
reading Riela. It asserts that Riela is
fundamentally a case covered by the first
prong of Chaunt. We disagree.

In Riela, the defendant entered the Unit-
ed States ‘as a stowaway He failed to

.disclose this on his petition for citizenship.

When this misstatement was discovered,
the government instituted denaturalization
proceedings asserting that if Riela did en-
ter the country as a stowaway he would
not have entered legally and thus would
not have been ehgxble for cmzenshlp Be-
cause’ lawful entry ist Qne ‘of. the” prerequx-
sites for tecemng a graht of cmzenshlp to
the United States the district court granted
the government’s denaturilization demand:
Lawful entry is, however an ultimate fact
or legal conclusion.” The fact that Riela
entered the country as a stowaway, al-
though clear evidence supporting a legal
conclusion of unlawful entry, is not itself a
ground for refusing naturalization. It is
the legal conclusion that would justify deni-
al of citizenship. Therefore, although the
court in Riela did not express which prong
of Chaunt it relied on, careful analysis

-shows it was the second. Fedorenko v.

United States, 449 U.S. 490, 520-21 & n. 4,
101 8.Ct. 737, 754-55 & n. 4, 66 L.Ed.2d 686
(1981) (Blackmun, J., concurring) (accord).
Moreover, the majority opinion in Fedoren-

. ko noted that the district court in that case
““rel[ied) on decisions by the United States

Court of Appeals for the Third .. .. Circuit
] ... and interpreted both Chaunt tests
as requiring proof that ‘the true facts

would have warranted denial of citizen-
“ship.”” 449 U.S. at 502 & n. 20, 101 S.Ct.

at 745 & n. 20 (citing United States v.
Riela, 337 .F.2d 986 (3d Cir.1964)).

* Even if the dissent’s reading of Riéla

were correct, the result we reach here

- would remain unchanged. The lack of una-

nimity, both within this panel and among
the various courts of appeals that have
wrestled with the second prong of Chaunt,

.bears witness to the fact that it is not an

opinion whose import is clear on its face.
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.- Chaunt states that denaturahzatlon is
justifiable if the applicant failed to disclose
some fact and its “disclosure might have
been useful in an investigation possibly
leading to the discovery of other facts war-
~ranting denial of citizenship.” Chaunt,
364 U.S. at 355, 81 S.Ct. at 151. Applied
literally, this does not require the govern-
ment to prove that, had the truth been told,
other disqualifying facts would have been
dxscovered Apphed hterally, ‘it does not
“even require the government to prove that,
had the truth been told, additional disquali-

fying facts might “possibly” have been dis- -

" covered. - Applied literally,-all the second

“prong of Chaunt would appear to require °

the government to prove is that, had the: -
truth been told, it “might’ have’ been use-’
ful” in a subsequent investigation and that
‘the investigation might “possibly Iead[] to .
the discovery” of disqualifying™ facts.
Thus read, Chaunt would undermine casés-
from Schneiderman v. United States, 320
U.S. 118, 63 S.Ct. 1333, 87 L.Ed. 1796
(1943), to Fedorenko v. United States, 449
U.S. 490, 101 S.Ct. 737, 66 L.Ed.2d 686
(1981), which establish that citizenship,
once granted, is a precious right; that, in a
denaturalization proceeding, ‘the govern-
ment bears a heavy burden; that it must
prove its case by clear, unequivocal, and

convincing evidence, so as not to leave the .

issue unclear; and that, in"such cases, all
" doubt is to be resolved in favor of the
" defendant. Our reseéarch has discovered no
. case that has ever apphed the second prong

literally. 2

. Thus, Chaunt must be construed beyond
the literal meaning- of its language. - The
- »onIy significant Supreme Court explication-
-is found in Justice Blackmun’§ concurrence
in Fedorenko. There, Justice Blackmun
recognized the tension between

‘the citizenship process and-the naturalizéd
citizen's interest in preserving his sta
Fedorenko, 449 US. at 522, 101 S.Ct. at
755 (Blackmun, J., concurring). He noted
that when “the Government seeks to re-
voke [a grant of citizenship], the Court
_ consistently and forcefully has held that it
. may do so only on scrupulously clear just-

. ficatmn and proof.” Id. at 523, 101 S.Ct. at

the -
“Government’s commitment to supervising -

" - suance of a visa.”

744 FEDERAL REPORTER, 2d SERIES

755. In addressmg the second prong of
Chaunt, Justice Blackmun concluded that
it “indeed contemplated only this rigorous
standard ...,” ¢d, and that under this
. prong the government “must prove the ex-
istence of disqualifying facts, not simply
facts that might lead to hypothesized dis-
qualifying facts.” JId. at 524, 101 S.Ct. at

_156. Justice Blackmun_w ended by stating:

" If naturalization can be revoked years or

" decades after it is conferred, on the mere
'susplcmn that certain undisclosed facts -

. might have warranted exc]usxon I fear
- that the valued:rights of cmzensth are
}n( dazfger of emon I

‘Ici a.t 525—26 101 S Ct. at 757. We think

:that Justice Blackmun’s ana]ysxs is correct.
To be consistent’ with the Supreme Court’s

i pnor “and subsequent decisions, the second
- prong of Chaunt must be read as requir-
-ing proof, by clear, unequivocal and con-

vincing evidence, of the existence of actual
disqualifying facts'.‘ Thus, the government
must prove that, had the undisclosed facts
been known, an investigation would have

_been conducted and disqualifying facts

would have been discovered. Turning

again to the present case, we must decide
.whether the government met its “rigorous

standard” of “scrupulously clear justifica-
tion and. proof" under elther prong of

Chaunt. - - - RN

f13] .'By. the dlstnct court’s own deter-
. minations- and our discussion in Parts VI.

and VIL, supra, it is clear that the govern-

ment did not meet its burden under the
first prong of the Chaunt test. The dis-
trict court determined that the government
“had not proved facts, which if known,
would have warranted denial of the visa.

It declared that “[i]t is not at all clear that,
in 1949, membership in ..

.. [the militia] at
Lubomyl would bave precluded the is-
United States v. Kow-
alchuk, 571 F.Supp. 72, 82 (E.D.Pa.1983).

. [14] With tne -ﬁ-rst nrong of the test
ehmmated, we turn to the second: if the

facts_had been dxsc]osed wou]d they have
*led to an investigation warranting denial?

~
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We have decided that the government
failed to prove that appellant’s wartime
activities constituted either voluntary as-
sistance to the enemy or assistance in the
persecution of civilian populations. No ad-
ditional reliable evidence was presented to
indicate that had the misrepresentations
not been made appellant’s visa application
would have been rejected. Therefore, we
hold, as a matter of law, that the govern-
ment has failed to prove by the requisite
clear and convincing evidence that, had ap-
pellant divulged his actual wartime resi-
dence _and occupation on his visa applica-
tion, an investigation would have uncov-
ered facts that would have resulted in the
denial of the visa. Bound as we are by this
court’s precedent, not rejected by the Su-
preme Court in Fedorenko, we do not meet’
the question of what such an investigation
might have uncovered

IX.

Because of the view we take, it is unnec-
essary to reach the question whether offi-
cial Soviet restrictions, which precluded the
defendant from freely interviewing favor-
able witnesses in the Soviet Union, amount-
ed to a deprivation of rights under the due
process clause.

The judgment of the district court w1l] be
reversed and the proceedings remanded
with a direction that judgment be entered
in behalf of appellant

ROSENN Cu‘cult Judge; dissenting.

The majonty reverses the district court’s
decision to revoke the defendant’s citizen-
ship. Because I disagree with the majori-
ty’s characterization of the facts and its
application of the law I dissent.

The district court concluded that tne de-

fendant illegally procured his citizenship by
entering this country with an invalid visa.
It had two separate grounds for this con-
clusion. First, the defendant was not a
genuine refugee of concern to the Interna-
tional Refugee Organization (IRO) and
1. The Lubomyl militia was officially known as

the schutzmannschaft but was interchangeably
referred to by the witnesses as the Lubomyl

therefore was ineligible for admission un-
der the Displaced Persons Act of 1948
(DPA), Pub.L. No. 80-774, 62 Stat. 1009
(1948). Second, the defendant was ineligi-
ble under section 10 of the DPA because he
made material misrepresentations to obtain
the visa. :

The majority rejects each of these inde-
pendent grounds: for revoking the defend-
ant’s citizenship. 1 believe it distorts the
district court’s finding of fact with regard
to the defendant’s role in” the Lubomy!
schutzmannschaft and misconstrues the
law of this circuit with regard to'the mate- -
riality of the defendants wﬂlful mxsrepre-
sentatlons .

These ,revocatlon proceedmgs have theu'
genesis: in’ -Serge - Kowalchuk’s - activities
shortly after the German military forces
occupied Lubomyl in June 1941, Within
two or three weeks after occupation, the
Germans organized the Ukrainian schutz-
mannschaft.! Shortly after, the defendant,
then an able-bodied twenty-one year old
man, suitable for military service, success-
fully sought out the collaborating mayor of
the city for employment.

His first assignment was to the 'food
distribution center serving government em-
ployees and the militia.” He apparently was

in charge, for the only other employee

there was his assistant. . In about one and
one-half months, he ‘was assigned to the
schutzmannschaft headquarters across the
street.- He worked at the food distribution
. center in the mornings and at militia head-
quarters in the afternoons. His services
were obwously impressive because, as the
defendant himself testified, in August 1942
he was sent elsewhere for special training
at no expense to him. He was the only

" selectee from the Lubomyl area in a class

of between 45 and 50. Upon the conclusion

of his six months “additional training in

local administration,” he received a certifi-
militia or polxee force. Prior to the schutz-

mannschaft, Lubomyl had no police force or
militia.
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‘cate of completion and returned to his
duties with the Lubomyl schutzmanns-
chaft. -He now worked full tlme with the
militia.2

CA -

' Torf\ﬂly.appreciate the defendant’s role

" with the schutzmannschaft, an under-
standing of its function and its crucial im
-portance to the Germans in carrying out
the policies of the German army in the

* Ukraine may be helpful. The majority suc-

_cinctly describes the tyrannical horrors in-
- flicted upon civilian populations in the terri-
tories occupied by the Nazi forces. The :.
Germans organized indigenous personnel
and formed them into auxiliary bodxes
" “The Lubomyl schutzmannschaft was pre-
‘cisely such a body. These organizations.
‘enabled the Nazi forces to carry out their.

repressive and brutal policies and, at the 2

same time, to wage an aggressive military
-campaign. ‘As the district court found,
“the occupying authorih'es did rely upon
‘indigenous forces,” Le., segments of the
. local population, to carry on the functions
of government and to enforce the observ-
~ance of restrictive edicts.” United States
v. Kowalchuk, 571 F Supp 72 80 (E.D.Pa.
1983). - - e

- According to Professor Raul Hilberg, an
: expert produced by-the Govemment at tri-
al, “the availability of 'an auxiliary force
made of Ukrainian personnel was of crucial
-importance to the Germans, particularly be-
cause without them nothing at “all could

.. have been accomplished”. in carrying out

. the policies of the German army in the
~-occupied territories. The duties of the in-
digenous forces included shootmg to avoid
-escapes, performing guard work details,
including the guarding of the Jewish ghet-
- to, enforcing the laws and restrictions, ar-
resting violators of restrictive measures
" and, under certain circumstances, killing
Jews. Dr. Hilberg further testified that
~the sheer numbers of those kﬂled in the

2 Mykola Kowa]chuk, defcndant s brotbcr,
" fied that after his brother’s supplemental train-
_ ing the defendant was given additional duties in

~ the militia. Mykola further acknowledged that

744 FEDERAL REPORTER, 2d SERIES

liquidation of the Jews required the use of
indigenous personnel. As the district court
found, the magnitude of the brutal plan to
liquidate in one day the 5,000 to 6,000 Jews
living in Lubomyl required not only the
German soldiers available, but also “signifi-
cant numbers of Ukrainian militiamen to

-assist them in escorting the Jews from the

- ghetto to the execution site, and to prevent
escapes.” United States v. Kowalchuk,

571 F.Supp. at 81. . - ~

Quahﬁmtlons for the Ukralman mlh-
tla/ police force were political reliability and
physical fitness. Its members were given
a certam amount of rudimentary training

they‘ u]txmately Evolved:a recognizable -

umf orm. oAl mdlgenous pohce forces
thrtmghout the tefritory occupied by the

German forces in the east were under the -

junsdlctlon ‘of Heinrich Himmler. ~Accord-
~ing fo Myko]a Kowalchuk, the defendant’s
“brother, the police patrolled the streets,
public buildings, and the perimeters of the

ghetto, carried arms, and guarded the com-

munity’s Jews on their death march to the
brick factory outside the city. There the
Jews were executed en masse in October
-1942. As the majority opinion notes, “To
facilitate their abilities to” persecute local
populations the Nazis took special interest
in the local police departments” and as the
Nazi occupation continued, “the suffering
- of local populations grew. Additional pres-
sures were applied through the local po-
Lice.” At 311. - 8

On thJs record t.he dlstnct court found

“'What the ewdence does establish with
the requisite clarity and conviction is that
“and routinely enforced the martial law
- restrictions imposed by the Germans, in-
- cluding beating Jews found outside the
. ghetto after curfew, beating or severely

‘reprimanding Jews who failed to wear |

~.the required insignia,.assisting the Ger-

mans in confiscating valuables from the -7

- -Jewish inhabitants, arresting and partici-

- pating in the harsh punishment of per- -

" in his 1981 (—ioposmohhc testified that his broth-
.er at times wore a umfonn, as dld all r.hc schutz-
mannschaft .
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sons involved in black-market activities
or subversive activities hostile to the
German occupation forces; and that the
defendant was aware of the responsibil-
ities assigned to the schutzmannschaft,
and occupied a responsible position, al-
beit largely clerical, within that organiza-
tion. :

. It is apparent ... that members of
the schutzmannschaft accompanied the
German gendarmes on the many occa-
sions disclosed by the testimony when

persons were rounded up for forced la-

bor, or arrested for various supposed
infractions; that many of the persons
thus apprehended were killed soon after-
“ward; and that members of the schutz-
mannschaft were present during such ex-
ecutions. Although the evidence does

- not disclose, with the requisite clarity
and conviction, that the defendant per-
sonally participated in any of these indi-
vidual atrocities, the evidence as a whole
leaves little doubt that everyone associat-
ed with the schutzmannschaft, including
the defendant, must have known of the
harsh repressive measures which the
schutzmannschaft were carrying out pur-
suant to German direction.

571 F.Supp. at 81. -

o B -
Upon completion of his special training,

_including the study of German, the defend- -

ant was assigned to full time duties with
the militia/police forces, his sole employ-
ment until he left Lubomyl. The defend-

ant, as was the case with only the comman- :
.dant and the deputy commandant, had his °
He occupied these: -

own private office.

3. The defendant testified: -
Q: But just to return, is it your testimony
that you did assign patrols that went through
the Jewish ghetto of the Ukrainian militia?
A: Not only the ghetto but all parts of the
city.
Q: Some were assigned spec1f1cally to go to
the ghetto?
A: The ghetto.

4. Fedchuk and Kotsura were subsequently pun-
ished, presumably by the Soviets, for having
- rendered service in the Ukrainian militia.-

‘them to various patrol duties.*

quarters for almost three years, the re-
mainder of the German occupation. Ac-
cording to the defendant, his duties consist-
ed of, among others, the preparation of

* duty rosters for patrol and guard duties for

the entire city, including the ghetto. He

" admitted that he took the names of the

militiamen and assigned them to various
locations and to the patrol of the ghetto.?

The Government presented nine eyewit-
nesses to the tragic wartime experience in
Lubomyl, six of whom were. non-Jewish

Soviet residents. Except for Getman, who'

appeared at trial, the others testified by
videotaped deposition and all, were vigor-.
ously cross-exammed by deiense ‘counsel.

All of these mtnesses, -most ef whom had -

known the ‘defendant before the war, “tésti-
fied that he served in the Ukrainian police
in Lubomyl. -
Kotsura, served in the militia wjth Kowal-
chuk and the defendant recalled assigning
Fedchuk
and Kotsura also identified the defendant
as the deputy commandant of the Ukrain-
ian police in Lubomyl.

Contrary to the majority’s assertion that
“[t]here was no evidence that appellant ...
directly engaged in persecuting the Jewish
people,” typescript op. at 4, many of the

~ eyewitnesses actually testified to specific

atrocities and acts of persecution per-
formed by the defendant personally A
number of them described the’ defendant’s

direct participation in the murders and bru-

5 tahtles against the Lubomyl Jews.

"The" dxstrxct court credited the testimony

of these nine witnesses only to the extent

that they described general conditions in

5. Getman described’in court in detail the role
played by Serge Kowalchuk in appearing at the
Getman home and ordering Getman's father on-
toa truck which removed him to the Jewish
cemetery. There, his father was killed. Trimo-
vich, a deposéd witness, attended school before
the war with the defendant’s sister and saw the
defendant almost every day before the war.
Trimovich testified that, among other atrocities,
he personally witnessed in October 1942 the

hanging of a Ukrainian woman in front of the

Catholic church located near the center of town.

He stated that the defendant *kicked out the -

stool ... from under the feet of this woman.”

Two of them, Fedchuk and

1
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Lubomyl, including the atrocities and per-
secutions generally performed by the
schutzmannschaft. .~ The district court
viewed the testimony of the Soviet witness-
es with skepticism because they were made

available by and were under the control of

the Soviet government. For various rea-
sons, it also discounted the testimony of
the three non-Soviet survivors of Lubomyl.

“When the Germans retreated from the

Ukrame the defendant elected to flee with -

“ them to Czechoslovakla The deferdant

" and his younger brother, Mykola, ultimate-
ly arrived at a displaced persons’ camp pear -
Saliburg, Austria. After spendmg four®
_ years there, the defendant applied.in No ™
vember 1947 for the- necessary clearance .

certlfymg that he was’a refugee- ‘of con-

tailed personal history form’ {the CM/1
form) As the majority notes, the defend-

ant stated on this form that he lived in’

Kremianee, not Lubomyl, and that he
worked there as a tailor. He concealed his
service with the militia during the war.
The district court stated: “In his CM/1
personal-history form, the defendant inten-
tionally misrepresented and/or concealed
his residence in Lubomyl and his employ-
ment with the town government there dur-

‘ing the German occupatlon "‘ 571 FSupp ‘

at 81.

" The defendant then took the next step to
gam admission to the United States as'a

* permanent resident. ' For this purpose, he .
" submitted anr additional personal history

questmnnau-e, the. “fragebogen,” together

6. The record in th:s msé l'eavcs no doubt that
the defendant departed voluntarily. - The de-
fendant testified that he left on the evacuation
train with his family. (App. 1335.) His broth-

- “er, Mykola, testified that they left voluntarily
‘and “there was but two or three families™ from
Lubomy! on the train. “(App. 1170-1171.) My-

- 'kola amplified this testimony on cross-examina-
tion with the following: -

Q. Sir, on the fragebogen ... is there a sec-
‘tion ... in which you said you were forcibly

transported by the Germans to Czechoslova-

kia? You used the words "fombly transport-
" ed;” is that correct? | -

_vice consul of t
-Salzburg, Austria, and on December 29,

744 FEDERAL REPORTER, 2d SERIES

with his IRO documentation, to representa-
tives of the United States Displaced Per- 3§
sons Commission (DPC). - After the re- - §
quired “investigation, he was duly certified
in 1949 as meeting the eligibility require-
ments of the DPA. He then applied to the
of the United States at

1949, he obtained a visa for admission to
the United States for permanent residence.

" His petition for naturalization was granted

on November 30, 1960 and he was adrmt—
ted to cltlzenshrp R _

The fragebogen opened with the admonr

. tion, that “all qliestions must be answered
3 'and all information fust be comp]ete" and
:'concluded thh the attestation that “if it is
'found t:o be untrue mcomplete or nuslead<
_ing in any point, I may be denied entry into

cern” to the IRO. To obtain this certifica- e United States.”

tion, the defendant executed a requfred de-’

Kowalchuk’s responses to the fragebo—
gen were false and misleading in the fol-
lowing respects: (1) Once more, Kowalchuk
concealed his employment in the Ukrainian
schutzmannschaft by falsely stating that
he was a tailor’s assistant in Kremianec
from 1939 to 1944. (2) Again, he concealed

‘his residence in Lubomyl by falsely stating
-that he had lived in Kremianec from 1939

to 1944. (3) He only listed attendance at a
trade school in Chelm, Poland, between
1936-39 and concealed his special schooling

“'in 1942-1943. - (4) He concealed his volun-

tary departure with the retreating German

~military forces from Lubomy! to Czechoslo-
‘vakia, by falsely stating that he left his

homeland because he was forcibly trans-

‘ported by the Germans. (5) In response to

a question concermng membershrp in any

A, Yes.
Q. When in fact, as you prev\ously testified,
_ it was your own choice to go or not to go is

_~.. that correct?

A. Yes. __ -

(App. 1173.) In its brief to ths court, the
Government notes, among other misrepresenta- '
tions of the defendant, *The] also claimed that
he had been forcibly transported by the Ger-~
mans (GA 26, 30; Gov't Ex. 15A, [42) when in
fact, as he admitted at trial, he volumanly left
Lubomyl (A 1255).7 .
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political, non-pohtxca] or paramilitary or-

" ganization, he falsely replied “none,” there-

by concealing "his membership in the
schutzmannschaft.

A In. -~ :
To gain lawful admission to the United
States for permanent residency under the
DPA, the defendant first had to establish
that he was a displaced person or refugee
of concern to the IRO. See DPA, § 2(b).
The district court found that the defendant
was not “of concern to the IRQ” because
he “voluntarily assisted the enemy forces,”
a determination that, under the constitution
of the” IRO, would have excluded the de-
fendant from eligibility under the DPA as a
bona fide refugee or displaced person.’
The majority challenges that determina-
tion. )

. The majority acknowledges that the dis-
trict court’s determination is “supported by
sufficient evidence in the record and [the
facts] ... are not clearly erroneous.” At
308. However, it then proceeds to excul-
pate the defendant on the ground that a
substantial question remains whether even

sufficient to constitute voluntary assist-
ance to the enemy. In reaching this con-
clusion, the majority has accepted the de-

-fendant’s argument that the Government
~ must prove the defendant’s intent or pur-
- pose to aid the enemy.

The Government points to t.he testlmorxy

of Mlchael R Thomas, co-author of the

7. Section Z(b) of the DPA, by incorporating the-
definition of “[plersons who will not be [con- _
sidered displaced persons] contained in the Con--

stitution of the IRO,” provided that individuals
who “voluntarily assisted the enemy forces ...
_ in their operations against the United Nations”
were ineligible for visas under the Act. _

8. The Constitution >of the IRO. Annex I-Part IL.

.reprinted in Chaptcr VI of the Manual, enumer-
ates categories of persons who will not be ‘the
concern of the organization. Section 20 thereof
excludes persons who can be shown “to have
voluntarily assisted the enemy forces ... in
their operations against the United Nations.” A
reading of sections 22 and 27 reveals that “

sistance to the enemy shall be presumed to havc
been voluntary” by a member of either “the

voluntary membership would have been
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IR0 Manual for Eligibility Officers, who
testified, consistent with the Manual, that
membership in a police force or militia
raised a presumption of voluntariness and
assistance to the enemy.! Furthermore, if
an applicant left his home with the retreat-
ing Nazis, as this applicant did, he was
“not of concern” to the IRO. John Chapin,

.- the American vice consul, testified categori-

cally that persons who served in the
Ukrainian police/militia would have been
ineligible for a visa. A.P. Conan, the re-
viewing officer, testified similarly. The ap-
plicant could only overcome the presump-
-tion agamst his eligibility by showing that
his service was mvoluntary This’ téstimo-
ny is fully consmtent w1th the’ ManuaL

The provisions of ‘the’ IRO constxtutlon
‘and the testimony of Thomas, Chapin, and
Conan, convincingly rébut’ the ‘majority’s
assertxon thata substantial question exists
whether volurtary membership would have
been sufficient “fo constitute voluntary as-
sistance to the enemy.”? "At 309. -

The district court also found that Serge
Kowalchuk “assisted the enemy in perse-
cuting civilian populations,” an alternative
basis for its conclusion that the defendant
was not a bona fide refugee of concern to
the IRO. The majority finds fault with this
conclusion, again on the ground that the
Government did not meet its high burden
of proof. The majority engages in fact-
- finding apparently on the basis of the self-
_ serving statements -of the defendant and
finds that the defendant made no substan-
tive d_ecxsxons in rendering his services for

police, paré-&ﬁlitary [or] auxiliary organisa-
tions.” Once an applicant has joined one of
<such organizations, the only answer for an ap—

_ -plicant under the language of section 27 is

dlsprove the voluntary nature of hls cnhst
_ment.” -

9. The IRO Consututxon. repnnted in the Manual
at chapter VI, ‘section 29, provides:

" The motive underlymg an act of assistance to
the enemy forces is irrelevant, if a person in
fact assisted the enemy forces and did so
voluntarily he must be assumed to have been
responsible for' the reasonable and probable
results of his acts; an allegation that he was

“*~ not pro-German so as much as anti-Commu-
nist is, even if true, entirely beside the point.
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" the schutzmannschaft.’® It therefore finds
that the defendant’s responsibilities in the
Lubomyl police were “simply- that of a
clerk.” ! The district court, however,
found that the defendant “occupied a re-
sponsible position ... within that organiza-
tion,” a finding supported by the evidence,
even if the Government’s eyewitness testi-
mony is ignored. The defendant concedes
that he, together with his assistant, made
the distributions at the food center. He
acknowledged that he assigned Fedchuk
and Kotsura to patrol duties. -A -simple
clerk would not have occupied private head-
quarters on the same level with the ‘com-

-mandant and deputy commandant.: A: sxm-A'
. ple clerk would not have been singled out:
from the police force for six monihs special

"training at full’ government expense. As_

t.he dxstnct court observed_ .
_ It is impossible to. avoid the’ infenem:e

that the defendant had found favor with
the Nazi occupiers of Lubomyl, and was’

being trained for even greater service in
the future.

If the defendant’s activities had been
as innocuous as he clauns, there would
have been little reason for him to leave
. Lubomyl w1t.h the retreatmg Germans

571 FSupp at 76. A sunple clerk would
not have been offered the opportunity for
himself and his famﬂy to leave for Czecho-
slovakia with the fleeing Nazis. -. .,

Accordmgly, 1 believe that there is no

basis for rejecting the district court’s find- |

mgs pertaining to the: defendant’s assist-
ance to the enemy in operatxons agamst the

10. Fedchuk, who scrved in the polxce fomc with
. the defendant after a:three_ month training peri-
. od, testified that Kowalchuk Swas,_the deputy

rank-and-file in the force. Fedchuk further tes-
tified that the commandant and Kowalchuk is-
- sued the instructions to guard the ghetto. Koto-
vich, who prior to the war was a schoolmate of
the defendant, a.lso testified that Kowalchuk
was the deputy commandant. Kotovich de-

scribed how the defendant ordered his-arrest )

" and his beating in the defendant’s private office.
_The district court chose to ignore this testimony
‘and I therefore do oot rely on it. Ignoring it,
.. however, does not prove the converse—that the

. defendant made no substantive decisions.
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United Natxons and in assisting the enemy
in the persecutxon of civilians. -

= L
A grant of citizenship may be revoked if
it was “illegally procured or ... procured
by concealment of a material fact....” - 8
U.S.C. § 1451(a) (1982). If all the precondi-

- tions to naturalization are not met, citizen-

ship is “llegally procured” and may be’
revoked. - Fedorenko v. United States, 449
"U.S. 430, 506, 101 S.Ct. 737, 747, 66 L.Ed.2d
686 (1981) “To obtain a grant ‘of citizen- -
shxp, an apphca.nt must have entered the

“United States’y pursuant to a valid visa.” An

ippﬁcant -ineligible under the law 1 may not

'-obta.ln a vahd visa. - - .

Kowalchuk obtamed ‘his” v1sa and entered

-tfus country under the provisions of the

“DPA. Congress enacted the DPA “[tlo
authorize for a limited period of time the
admission into the United States of certain
Européan "displaced persons....” DPA,
preamble. The Act did not provide that all
qualified applicants were to be admitted.
In contrast, the Act enumerated certain .
automatic exclusions from ehgibihty SeC- ,
tion 10 stated: B :
No eligible dxspla.ced person shall be
admitted into the United States unless
there shall have first been a thorough
" investigation and written report ... re-
" garding such person’s character, history,
. and eligibility under this Act. The bur-
"den of proof shall be upon the person
who seeks to establish his eligibility un-

“11. The ﬁajorftf makes comparisons of the de- -

- fendant's duties in the schutzmannschaft with

- duties performed by menial servants. Compari-
“commandant and at the same time, the secre- -
. tary.” The defendant issued instructionsto the

_ sons are generally risky, especially in the com-
plex realm of human behavior. How can one
compare, as the majority suggests, see op. at
312, a uniformed, specially trained member of
“an armed paramilitary organizafion who “occu- -
__pied a responsible position” as a collaborator
over a period of almost three years, with a
baker who delivers bread to the militia, or a bar
maid who serves beer, or a char woman who
cleans the defendant’s office. The latter per-
_form menial duties; they hold no position of
responsibility—not even membership—in a par-
amilitary organization engaged in carrying out
“harsh repressive measures.” 571 F.Supp. at 81.
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der this Act. Any person who shall will-
fully make a misrepresentation for the
purpose of gaining admission into the
United States as an eligible displaced
person shall thereafter not be admissible
into the United States.

In this case, it is undisputed that Kowal-
chuk “willfully ma[d]e a misrepresentation
for the purpose of gaining admission into
the United States as an eligible displaced
person.” . In reversing the district court,
however, the majority holds that Kowal-
chuk’s misrepresentations about his war-
time activities were not “material.” 12 . I
disagree. o Co

A
In Chaunt v. United States, 364 U.S.

350,:81 S.Ct. 147, 5 L.Ed.2d 120 (1960), the -

Government attempted to revoke the peti-
tioner’s citizenship on the ground that he
had made several misrepresentations in his
application for citizenship. The district
court cancelled the petitioner’s naturaliza-
tion, and the court of appeals affirmed.
The Supreme Court reversed, finding that
Chaunt’s misrepresentations were not ma-
terial. At issue was Chaunt’s failure to
reveal arrests that were made more than
five years prior to the time of naturaliza-
tion. The Court stated that “[t]he totality
of the circumstances surrounding the -of-
fense charged makes them of extremely
shght consequence,” id. at 354, 81 S.Ct. at
150, and therefore would not of themselves
have provided a ground to deny citizenship.
The Court also rejected t.he Govemments

12. It is worth notmg that the stanite on its face
does not require a “material” misrepresentation
to render an applicant ineligible. In Fedorenko
v. United States, 449 U.S. 490, 507, 101 S.Ct. 737,
747, 66 L.Ed.2d 686 (1981), the Court interpret-
ed the statute to include a materiality require-
ment. The Court analogized the DPA to the
denaturalization statute, 8 U.S.C. -§ 1451(a)
(1982), which authorizes denaturalization for
“concealment of a material fact or ... willful
misrepresentation.” In Fedorenko, the Court at-
tached the materiality standard to the DPA even
though there was no mention of it in the statute.

"The DPA was amended in 1952 to exclude any
alien who seeks to procure a visa “by willfully
‘misrepresenting a material fact.” Immigration
and Nationality Act of 1952, § 212(a)(19),
Pub.L. No. 82414, 66 Stat. 163, 183 (codified at

argument that had it known of the arrests
it might have investigated Chaunt further
and might well have discovered a link be-
tween him and the Communist Party, ex-
plaining that the information that Chaunt
had disclosed revealed a more tenuous nex-
us with the Communist Party than the un-
disclosed arrests did. Id. at 355, 81 S.Ct. at
150.1 The Court then concluded that the
decision to denaturalize Chaunt should be
reversed because . - T

_ the Government .. failed to shoW by
“clear, unequivocal, and convincing’ evi- _
dence either (1) that. facts -Were. sup-

. pressed thch lf known,u __would have .
. warranted denjal of: ¢itizen§hipor (2) that "

. thelr dlsclosure might have been useful

in an mvestxgahon possibly leading to the o

discovery- of other facts warrantmg deni-
al of cxtxze‘nshxp o e

Id. at 355, 81 S.Ct. at 150-151.

- The Court in Chaunt thereby devised a
two-pronged test for materiality in denatu--
ralization cases. Under the first prong, the
Government must prove that a truthful
answer to a question would have disquali-
fied an applicant. In the alternative, the
Government may prevail under the second
prong. The second prong deals with a

‘situation in which the truthful answer to a -
“question would not by itself disqualify the
~applicant. The Government may still dem-

onstrate that the misrepresentation is ma-
terial if it shows that the truthful answer
"‘mlght have been useful” in an investiga-
thn of ‘the apphcant possﬁ)Iy leadmg to

8 USC § 1182(a)(19) (1982)) The reason for

* '~ the amendment is stated in H.R.Rep. No. 1365,

82nd Cong., 2d Sess., reprinted in 1952 U.S.Code
-Cong. & Ad.News 1653, 1704, and is based on
the belief that misrepresentations having no
. bearing on the material issues involved, such as
. place of birth or personal data, statements often
- made under duress'to avoid répatriation, should
not serve as a basis for echusxon -

13. The Court, however, stated: "Had that disclo-
sure not been made in the application, failure to
_report the arrests would have had greater signif-
icance. It could then be forcefully argued that
failure to disclose the arrests was part and par-
cel of a project to conceal a Communist Party
‘affiliation.” _364 U.S. at 355, 81 S.Ct. at 150.
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the discovery of other facts warranting
denial of citizenship.”

In Fedorenko v. United States, 449 U.S.
490, 101 S.Ct. 737, 66 L.Ed.2d 686 (1981),
the Supreme Court affirmed the court of
appeals’ decision ordering Fedorenko’s de-
naturalization. Without deciding the ques-

" tion of whether the Chaunt materiality

test also governed false statements in visa
applications, the Court reasoned: “At the
.very least, a misrepresentation must be

considered material if disclosure of the true

facts would have made the applicant ineligi-
ble for a visa.” Id. at 509, 101 8.Ct. at 749.

Since Fedorenko, the Eleventh Circuit. -
has applied both prongs of the” Ckaunt test
in the context of a visa case ' Untted
. States v. Koziy, 728 F.2d 1314 (11th Cir.”
1984). Koziy had failed to”reveal in. his.,
visa application that he had been.a member
of the Ukrainian police. In affirming the
revocation of Koziy's citlzenshlp, the court
-of appeals stated: T

The district court found that Koziy never

disclosed his membership in- the Ukrain-

ian Police Force. It ruled that if he had
disclosed his connection with the police
~ force in his visa application, his applica-
tion would have been rejected outright,
or at the least an investigation would
have commenced which rmght have led to

a denia) of _citizenship. . These find-

_ings are not clearly erroneous. -~
Id. at 1320. : -

-B -,- '.. N
In the mstant case, had the defendant
" revealed on December 29, 1949, the day he
obtained hxs visa.from the vice consul, the
facts which he suppressed those facts
would have warranted the denial of his visa
and thereby precluded him from obtaining
citizenship. As previously npoted, the de-
fendant willfully concealed his voluntary
membership "and employment in the
_Ukrainian militia/police force, his attend-
“ance at the special training school during
the German occupation, and his voluntary
departure to Czechoslovakia with the re-
treating German military forces. Thomas,
chief eligibility officer for the IRO in 1948,
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" testified that under its mandate the DPC ;
would only accept refugees who were eligi- §

ble for IRO assistance. Under the IRO
Constitution, he stated, persons who collab- %
orated with the enemy were ineligible for
assistance even though they were refu- ;'
gees.

IRO.” The burden to prove eligibility for
IRO assistance was on the applicant, and
his CM/1 form became the basic documen
-upon which the field eligibility officer d

pended. Membership in a police force or
militia raised a presumption of voluntari-_
ness and ass:stance to the enemy. ‘Fur- 3
thermore, a.ccordmg to Thomas, if the ap-'

Iphcant left home with the retreating Nazis, -

: he was “not the concern” of the IRO. ‘He 3§

Iso stated that membershlp in a pohce -

“force or paramilitary organization made an ¥
" applicant ineligible for assistance because ¥

such activity constituted voluntary assist
ance to the enemy. The applicant’s func
tions in the police were not important in the
determination of eligiblity.

Chapin, American vice consul in 1948 in ¥¢
Salzburg, Austria, testified that the IRO ZE

_documents, the fragebogen, and the DPC’s f,

investigation and report accompanied the
application for a visa. The standard proce-.

dure in every case was to read the fragebo- ¥
gen. Close attention was paid to the apph~ - 3

-cant’s occupation and residence during the |
.war years and the applicant had the burden”
" under the law of proving eligibility for

. visa. -Persons who had served in the’
" Ukrainian police or mxlma would have bee
mehg’xble : :

' Conan employed by the DPC between
1948 and 1952, served a stint as the senior
officer in charge of the Commission’s activ-
ities for the British zone. He essentially
reviewed the eligibility of those whose a
plications the Commission proposed to T
-ject. He testified that an applicant wh
had served in the Ukrainian schutzmanns
chaft would have been rejected unless he
overcame the presumption against his eligi-
bility by showing that his service was invol
untary and that he had not committed
atrocities or persecuted any person on the’

If an applicant voluntarily assisted 3.
the enemy, “he was not of concern of the §
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ground of religion. Such an _applicant
would have been rejected even if the
Ukrainian schutzmannschaft were not on a
list of inimical organizations. Government
exhibits demonstrate that applications in
fact had been rejected in 1952 by the DPC
under section 13 of the Act on the
ground of such membership. Moreover,
Conan stated that applications of a member
of the Ukrainian schutzmannschaft would

have been rejected prior to the 1950,

amendment of the DPA.\S

‘Whatever the defendant’s motlvatlon 16
the misrepresentations and concealment
were material to the IRO’s determlnatlon in
1947 of whether Kowalchuk was a bona
fide refugee and “of concern” to the IRQ.
They were plainly material to the vice con-
sul's determination in 1948 that declared
Kowalchuk eligible for admission to the
United States as a permanent resident.
The . evidence of willful misrepresentation,
concealment, and materiality are clear, con-
vincing, and unequivocal. Regardless of
whether the defendant personally partici-
pated in the atrocities and brutalities com-
mitted by the Lubomyl schutzmannschatft,
the district court found, even discounting
the Government’s eyewitnesses to the Lu-
bomyl tragedies, that the “‘defendant was
aware of the responsibilities assigned to
the schutzmannschaft, and occupied a re-
sponsible position, albext largely clerical,
within that organization.” 571 F.Supp. at
81. Truthful answers on the CM/1 and the
fragebogen would " have prevented the de-
fendant from obtaining a visa under the
DPA. -

14. 'Section 13 of the DPA provides: “No visa
. shall be issued under the provisions of the Act
to any person who is or has been a member of,
or participated in, any Movement which is or
has been hostile to the United States....” This
section provides another independent ground
for ineligibility for a visa in this case. -

Y

- S

L:'«16 The defendam tcsnﬁed that he madc the mis-

15. He testified: .
Q. Mr. Conan, would a member of the
_ Ukrainian schutzmannschaft have been reject-
ed prior to the amendment of the Displaced
Persons Act in June 1950?
A. Yes, he would have beer rejected

C.

Assuming arguendo that the defendant’s
misrepresentations were not material un-
der the first prong of the Chaunt test,
they were material under the second prong.
Under the second prong of Chaunt, the
Government must prove that the disclosure
of the suppressed facts “might have been’
useful in an investigation possibly leading
to the discovery of other facts warranting
denial of citizenship.” 364 U.S. at 355, 81
S.Ct. at 151.- The majority misconstrues
the second prong of Chaunt and the case
law interpreting Chaunt: “What has divid-
ed the courts of appeals in visa apphcatlon
cases'is ‘mot the apphcabxhty o Chaunt,
but rather the u'nport of the secomf prong
of Chaunt’s denaturalization’ test . We
[the Thxrd and Nmth Cu-cuits} reqmre the
govemment to prove not only that, had the’
correct m'fonnatlon -been “available, an in-
_ vestigation 3 would have been undertaken
but that it would have uncovered facts
warranting visa denial. See United States
v. Riela, 337 F.2d 986, 989 (3d Cir.
1964). ...” At 313 (citations to Ninth Cir-
cuit cases omitted).

Contrary to the majority’s assertions, see
op. at 313, there was no actual division in
the courts of appeals priot to Fedorenko V7
over the interpretation of the second prong
of Chaunt 8 In the years following the
Chaunt decision, the courts of appeals ap-
plied the Chaunt test. - See La Madrid-

-Peraza v. INS, 492 F.2d 1297 (9th Cir.1974)
(per curiam); ‘Kassab v. INS, 364 F.2d 806
(6th Cir.1966); United States v. Riela, 337
F.2d 986 (3d Cir.1964); United States v.
Oddo, 314 F.2d 115 (2dfor ), cert. demed

representations of residence to the IRO to con-
ceal possible retaliation by the Soviets to his
parents. However, his brother, Mykola, previ-
ously had truthfully stated his residence in Lu-
bomyl to the IRO and the defcndant knew this.

17. Except for Umred States v. Shesh!awy 714
F.2d 1038 (10th Cir.1983), all of the cases cxted
by the majonty are pre-Fedorenko.

18. Nor has any court of appeals suggested thata
different standard applies in visa applications
than in denaturalization cases.
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375 U.S. 833, 84 S.Ct. 50, 11 L.Ed.2d 63
(1963); United States v. Rossi, 299 F.2d
650 (9th Cir.1962); Langhammer v. Ham-
ilton, 295 F.2d 642 (1st Cir.1961). In Lan-
ghammer,® Oddo,® and Kassab? the
courts applied the second Chaunt test and

19. A year after the Chaunt decision, the court in
Langhammer ordered a deportation because an
alien failed to disclose membership in the Com-
munist Party in his application. The court re-
jected Langhammer's argument that the investi-
gation that would have followed the disclosure
.would have revealed that his membership was

*. involuntary and that he therefore would have
been eligible as a quota immigrant.
he [L'mghammcr] argues that a misrepresenta-
tion is not material unless the alien would defj-

. nitely have been excluded on the true facts. We
do not believe this to be the law. . ;
The Langhammer court thereby cmpha.st.zed'
that the second prong in Chaunt did not require
a showing that the disclosure of all of the facts

following a full investigation would. have pre-

cluded an applicant from obtaining a’ vxs.

"The defendant in Oddo claimed that-hxs fail-. -
ure to disclose a series of past arrests-did not

justify the revocation of his citizenship because
such a record would not have automatically
disqualified him from obtaining citizenship.
Writing for the panel, then Judge Marshall (la-
ter the author of the Supreme Court’s opinion in
Fedorenko) rejected this claim. “Failure to dis-
close a record of arrests, even though none of
- those arrests by itself would be a sufficient
ground for denial of naturalization closes to the
Government an avenue of enquiry which might
conceivably lead to collateral information of
- greater relevance.” 314 F.2d at 118 (emphasis
added).  The cdurt thereby held that the
.- Government need not prove that an applicant
would have been found mehgxble had the inves-
nganon occurred .

< ~ .

~The court held that Kassab was subje'-z to
deportatxon since he had procured a visa by
“fraud and willful misrepresentation of a mate-
.rial fact.” 364 F2d at 807. Kassab had ob-

tained his visa because hie was married to a .
He failed to reveal that -

lawful resident alien.
his wife had commenced an annulment pro-
ceeding. The court cited Langhammer and

. Chaunt and held that it need not “be shown that

_ petitioner would not have procured his visa if
the true facts had been known. It is sufficient
that if the fact of the annulment proceeding had
been revealed, it might have led to further ac-
tion and the discovery of facts which would
have justified the refusal of the visa.” Id

22. Rossi had used his deceased brother’s name
to gain admission to the United States because
he believed that the applicable immigration quo-
ta was filled and that he could not enter the

744 FEDERAL REPORTER, 2d SERIES

“In essence -

~ Id at 648, _
S Thc I'anguage in Lhc Rosst case is very confus-

found that a misrepresentation was materi-
al if its disclosure would have led to an
investigation that might have uncovered
other disqualifying facts. This court in

. Riela, and the Ninth Circuit in Rossi # and

La Madrid-Peraza,® used different lan-

country in his own name. The Government
argued that Rossi's misrepresentations on a visa
application justified revocation of his citizen-
ship “without regard to the effect true answers
would have had on his application.” Id. at 651.
The court properly rejected the Government's
argument, holding that under the Chaunt test
“proof of Rossi's intentional misrepresentation

ship ... [t]he materiality of the misrepresenta-
-tion may be determinéd by the bearing it had
'ugon'bls nght to' cnter thls coumry -
$52; : '

ing. ‘A careful examination of its holding re-
. veals that it 'was a prong oné€.case, and not a
" prong two case. Rossi was asked his nationality
and he entered a false response. According to
the court, the true answer to the question would
either have been material because the applica-
ble immigration.quota was filled or immaterial
because it was not. There is no suggestion in
the case that a truthful answer would have
caused any further investigation into Rossi's
background. Because the Government appar-
ently did not assert that Rossi's misrepresenta-
tion allowed him to evade an investigation,

" there was no need for the court to engage in -

prong two analysns . -

23. The INS found La Madrid-Peraza to be de-
portable because she obtainéd her visa through
a misrepresentation in her labor certificate. In

her application, La Madrid-Peraza overstated

...the wages that she was to receive from her
prospective job. Under federal regulations, she

. -was .not eligible to receive a labor certificate if

- her prospective job paid less than the prevailing '

wage rate. Although the Government produced
evidence that La Madrid-Peraza overstated her
wage rate, there was no evidence that she was
. actually paid at less than the prevailing rate.

The court cited Rossi and reversed the depor-

- tation order because the Government failed to
show that disclosure of her actual wages would
have disqualified her. The court properly ap-
plied prong one analysis, citing Chaunt: “[Tlhe
Government must prove that if the truth had
. been disclosed, it would have warranted denial
of citizenship.” Jd at 1298. As in Rossi, a
truthful answer would not have led the Govern-
ment to investigate the petitioner further—ei-
ther it would or would not have disqualified La
Madrid-Peraza. Therefore, there was no need
for the court to engage in prong two analysis.
The court also cited Rossi for the following
proposition: “a fact suppressed or misstated is

was not alone enough to divest him of citizen-

Id. at

et s e
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guage in their applications of the Chaunt The majority asserts that the proper test
test. A careful examination of these cases, under the second prong of Chaunt is
however, reveals that the reason this dif- whether “an investigation would have been
ference arises is because the facts in these undertaken ... that ... would have uncov-
cases required only prong ome analysis. ered facts Warranting visa denial.” See op.
at 313. The only Third Circuit case cited
by the majority for its position is Riela.
Because Riela is not relevant to a discus-
sion of the second prong of Chaunt, the

m was materi-
ive led to an
ve uncovered
This court in
n Rossi # and

lifferen N |

ent lan ! The majority mischaracterizes the law of
3¢ Government this court by misinterpreting the Riela de-
ations on a visa ) . T
of his citizen-
ot true answers
m.” Id at 651. i
: Government's }
he Chaunt test :
srepresentation
him of citizen-
misrepresenta-
bearing it had
ry...." Id at i

cision. In 1964, this court applied the
Chaunt tezt "? U;nted ‘;m ‘ies v. R u(zilc_z, ?;37 majority is compelled to rel_\} on the court’s
F.2d 986 (3d Cir.1964). Riela arrived in the reading of Chaunt in United States v.

United States as astowaway. He filed 00000 714 F2d 1038 (10th Cir.1983).
fraudulent papers of admission and a peti- See op. at 313. In Sheshtawy, the defend-
tion for citizenship concealing his true iden- ant, arrested for concealing stolen property
tity by substituting another alien’s name, ¢y q0 weeks, before his taturalization hear-
birthday, place of origin, time of arrival, o falled to make thls disclosure ‘on‘a
and travel plans upon arrival. After not- giandard foim- quesndnnarre updating his
ing ‘that mere provision of false answers petxtlon for naturahzatlon In seeking the
1se, and not a would be insufficient to revoke Riela’s citi- defendant‘s revocation - of citizenship i
his nationality zenship, the court noted that “[tlhe false Sheshta'wy the Govemment unlike its po-
According to 3 answers given by the defendant were mate-  sition in this case, did not allege or produce
:ef::r; w‘l’.“ld : rial if they resulted in the suppression of evidence pertaining to the existence of any
or mmgfcﬁi facts which, if known, would have warrant- underlying disqualifying facts. At 313.
suggestion in ed denial of citizenship.”? Id. at 989. The court in Sheshtawy, as does the major-
twe o tave  3f The court then examined the record and ity here, relied on Justice Blackmun’s con-
. p:‘rs » found that the false answers on the natu- currence in Fedorenko.
nisrepresenta- | _ralization documents ‘“‘were material be-'  mp. majority’s interpretation and the
investigation, 4 cause they resulted in the suppression of enth Circuit’s reading of Chaunt are in
fo engage in | facts which, if known, would have barred {irect conflict with the interpretation that

the naturalization of the defendant because h35 been consistently applied by five of the

is very confus-
its holding re-

222 to be de- __ of his obvious failure to meet the statutory . cireuit courts of appeals. ‘See Koziy, su-
;,sg;ﬁ?u%ﬁ 1 requirements.”. Jd. at 989. The court thus  pr5 (11th Cir.1984); United States v. Fe-
2 overstated held that the misrepresentations were such  gorenko, 597 F.2d 946 (5th Cir.1979); Kas-

ve from her ‘ that, if the questions were answered truth- sab, supra (6th Cir.1966); Oddo, supra (2d
julations, she fully, Riela would have been denied citizen- . Cir.1963); Langhammer, supra (ist Cir._

be provaiios - ship automatically and immediately. Be- 1961). Until Sheshtawy, no court of ap-
a:nt produced  § cause the truthful answers to the questions peals varied from the standard interpreta-
;le]x;sttas::: her _ on the forms themselves dlsquahfled Riela, tion of Chaunt Under the second prong
wailing r;aj 4 an 1nvest1gat10n to uncover additional facta of the Chaunt test, a mxsrepresentat]on is
d the depor- was unnecessary. Riela was denaturalized “material if its disclosure “might have been
ent failed to } under the first prong of the Chaunt test, useful in an investigation possibly leading

vages ‘I”°Uld v and the court therefore did not address the to the discovery of other facts warranting
5;2‘:? r“[yTJag: v second prong, an alternative ground on denial of citizenship.” 364 U.S. at 355, 81

e truth had whlch to ﬁnd matenahty o S.Ct. at 151 (emphasis added). The majori-
anted denial G | - S .

in Ro:f:;u aa “not matenal to an alxen s cmry unless Lhe truth 24. The court’s language is almost a verbatim
the Govern- - would have justified a refusal to issue a visa" - ‘recital of the first prong of the Chaunt test. The
further—ei.- $ 3 ... 492 F.2d at 1298. This statement is correct with Government may prevail in a denan:uralization
qualified La ; . regard to prong one of Chaunt, the relevant test case if it proves “(1) that facts were suppressed

‘as no need ~_3PPli°d in both Rossi and La Madrid-Peraza. which, if known, would have warranted denial
vo analysis. _ There is no reason to believe that either court of citizenship....” 364 US. at 355, 81 S.CL at
e fO”"ng - intended this language to apply in a case involv- 151. . -

mir is i ing the second prong in Chaunt. ) - N ) , N
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ty’s standard is that a misrepresentation is
material if as a result of its disclosure “an
investigation would have been undertaken

. that ... would have uncovered facts
warranting visa denial” At 313. The
majority has replaced a “materiality” test
with an “outcome determinative” test and
has thereby transformed, without any plau-
sible explanation, the words “might” and
“possxb]y’ to “would.” %

The majority’s interpretation not only .
conflicts with the language of Chaunt and
its interpretation by five circuits, but it also
strays from the standard legal defmmon ‘of
the term materiality. Tm

[A] misrepresentation is "gé Srerally .

deemed material if it is shown that the" -

" correct facts would-have had a bearing”
on the action of a decision maker The
term “materiality” has been glven thlS
meaning in the Federal secuntxes ’laws,
the law of torts, and the law of con-
tracts. ... - Within the immigration laws
 themselves a similar meaning has been
given to statutory materiality require-
ments. See Chaunt..
Castaneda-Gonzalez v. INS 564 F.2d 417,
431 and n. 29 (D C.Cir. 1977) (<:1tat10ns omxt—

ted).

An understanding of the policy behind
the DPA also_compels a rejection of the
majority’s proposed test. Indeed, the facts
of this very case illustrate the problems

‘with the majority’s formulation. The mis-

representatlon and the accompanying facts

. in this case are in starf( contrast to the

25. Chaunt stands for the proposmon that a mis-
representation is material if its “disclosure’
might have been useful in an investigation pos-
sibly leading to the distavery of other facts
warranting the denial of citizenship." 364 °U.S.
at 355, 81 S.Ct. at 151 (emphasis added).. “War-
ranting” means permitting or justifying.” It does
not mean requiring. See Langhammer, 295
F 2d at 648. - :

26. The majority's rulmg encourages 1y1ng on
application forms because no penalty whatever
is paid for a misrepresentation. At worst, the
majority places Kowalchuk in the same position
he would have been had he told the truth, only

now the burden of proof is placed on the

Government not Kowalchuk. ‘Under the majori-
_ty's standard, the Government must prove, by
“clear and convincing evidence, that there was a

744 FEDERAL REPORTER, 2d SERIES

inconsequential nondisclosures that Con-
gress and the court have chosen to absolve.
The - majority does not deny that Serge
Kowalchuk willfully misrepresented his
wartime activities and that if he had dis-
closed the truth a further investigation
would have occurred. That investigation

" might have revealed the evidence produced

at trial or, for that matter, confirmed the
eyewitnesses’ testimony of Kowalchuk’s
personal participation in brutal atrocities.?
Even the evidence revealed at trial would
have raised, at the very least, serious ques-
tionis in the mind of the vice counsel con-

-cemmg whether to admxt Kowalchuk .

‘these reasons I believe that defend-
“anf’s willful* mxsrepresentatlons were mate-’

. rial under Chaunt’s second prong ‘because

truthful answers to the questions would
have led to an investigation that might
have revealed facts raising a substantial
question of eligibility.

Iv.

In sum, the district court revoked the
" defendant’s citizenship on the following in-
dependent grounds: (1) The defendant was -
not a genuine refugee “of concern” to the
IRO and therefore was not entitled to the
benefits of the Displaced Persons Act be-
eause (a) he assisted the Nazis in persecut-
ing ‘civilians in his role as a member of the
schutzmannschaft, and (b) because in such
capacity he voluntarily assisted the enemy
forces in their operations against the Unit-

willful rnisre.preSEntalion, that an invest‘igation

would have occurred, that actual facts existed

that would have disqualified Kowalchuk, and
 that they would have been uncovered.

27. Recently, Judge Tuttle, writing for the court
in United States v. Palciauskas, 734 F.2d 625
(11th Cir.1984), emphasized that the Govern-
ment is not required to prove that actual facts
existed that would have disqualified the appli-

cant. The court found that the failure of the
defendant to disclose his office as mayor was
material. It held that the defendant’s conten-
tion that his position was impotent was for the -
government authorities to determine on the ba-
sis of truthful information in 1949, not for the
defendant to decide for himself then, or for the
court to decide now.
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t Con- ‘» ed Nations, and (2) The defendant illegally mer miner appealed. The Court of Ap-
bsolve. obtained his visa because he made willful peals, Adams, Circuit Judge, held that fail-

Serge material misrepresentations to gain admis- ure to consider relative earnings of mining
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conclusions.

sion to the United States as a permanent
I believe that the record fully
supports the trial judge's findings and his
I therefore dissent and would
affirm the judgment of the district court.?®
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COMPENSATION PROGRAMS, United
States Department of Labor and Bene-
fits Review Board, U.S. Department of
Labor, Respondent.
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I .. . -

-Former coal miner applied for’ black

lung disability benefits. Following denial
of benefits by Benefits Review Board, for-

28. Because 1 would affirm the district court, 1

address the defendant’s contention that he was

denied due process.. He asserts that when his’
counsel was in the Soviet Union for the deposi-.
tions of the government witnesses, the Soviet

Union denied him the opportunity to visit Lubo-
myl to investigate or interview potential wit-
nesses. However, as the district court observed,
Soviet Russia alse imposed the same limitations
upon Government counsel. The defendant does
not make any claim that he was deprived of any
specific evidence or testimony. He makes no
showing that any testimony has been excluded

- that “would have been material and favorable to

his defense.” United States v. Valenzuela-Ber-
nal, 458 U.S. 858, 867, 102 S.Ct. 3440, 3446 73
L.Ed.2d 1193 (1982). )

At one point, defense counsel informed the
Government that he knew of eighteen witnesses
in the Soviet Union whom he would like to call.

job, which former coal miner held for 12%:
years, and job as a receiving clerk for a
clothing manufacturer, where former min-
er had worked for past 26 years, in deter-
mining that employment was “comparable”
and that former miner was not entitled to
black lung disability benefits was error
mandating vacation of Judgment and re-
mand for further findings.

~ Vacated and remanded.

< Faxlure to consxder relatwe earmngs of
coal mmmg job, which_ former coal miner
had herd for 12‘/2 years, and job as a receiv-
ing clerik for ‘A cl'othmg manufacturer,
where former miner had worked for past
26 years, in determining that employment
was ‘“comparable” and that former miner
was not entitled to black lung disability
benefits was error mandating vacation of

judgment and remand for further findings. -

Federal Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of
1969, § 401 et seq., as amended, 30 US

“C.A S 901 et seq.

Frank L. Tamulonis, Jr. (Argued), Zim-
‘merman, Lieberman & Derenzo Pottsvﬂle

'{Pa for petmoner T T

Yet,. he made no request to interview any of -
them or to depose them. On the other hand, the
Government by letter dated March 12, 1980 in-
-formed_defense counsel that it was requesting
_penmssxon from the Soviet Union to bring the

. "deposed witnesses to the United States to testify

and offered “to. make a similar request on be-
-half of the Kowalchuks that specific witnesses
" be produced to testify on their behalf.” The
_.defense failed to follow through on the Govern-
ments offer. " Their request to interview wit-
nesses was made only after defense counsel was
in the Soviet Union and even then it was made
fnformally. Moreover, the trial court’s factual
"conclusions are based upon the testimony of the

defendant and his witnesses- or other evidence .

not inconsistent with- that testimony 571

. _F.Supp. at 80.

I see no merit to the defendant's due process
contention.



